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RESERVATION, IN WYOMING. 

FEBRUARY 14, 1899.-Referred to the Committee on Indian Affairs and ordered to be 
printed. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE IN'l'ERIOR, 
Washington, Febructry 13, 1899. 

SIR: The Indian appropriation act, approved July 1, 1898, provides 
as follows: 

That the Secretary of the Interior be, and he hereby is, directed, through an Indian 
inspector, to cause an investigatjon to be made of the kind, extent, character, and 
value of the improv.ements made by certain white men, citizens of the United States, 
since eighteen hundred and sixty-eight, upon tracts of land settled upon, occupied, 
and improved prior to the date of the treaty creating the Wind River or Shoshone 
Indian Reservation, in the State of Wyoming, which embraced within said reserva­
tion the tracts of l and so previously settled upon, and to report to Congress at the 
beginning of the next r egular session the just and equitable value of said improve­
ments made by the respective claimants thereof, who h av e been compelled to abandon 
the same and to remove from the said reservation, and such other facts respecting 
such se tt lement as may be of value in the adjustment of any claim arising from such 
removal. 

Under date of September 16, 1898, United States Indian Inspector 
Charles F. Nesler was directed to make the required investigation, and 
his report~ with accompanying papers, is herewith submitted. 

The inspector's report has been considered by the Commissioner of 
Indian Affairs, as shown by his letter dated 9th instant (copy herewith). 

In his report the Commissioner also gives a history and statement 
of the claims of the settlers who went upon the Wind River Reserva­
tion prior to the date of the creation of the same by the treaty of 
July 3, 1868 (15 Stats., 763), and shows the payments heretofore made 
to these settlers. 

Very respectfully, THOS. RYAN, 
Acting Secretary .. 

The SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESE~TATIVES. 
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DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, 
OFFICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, 

T¥ ashington, Febntary 9, 1899. 
SIR: The Indian appropriation act, approved July I, 1898 (30 Stats., 

.57i), contains the following clause: 
Tha.t the Secretary of the Interior be, and he hereby is, directed, through an 

.Indian dnspector, to cause au investigation to be made of the kind, extent, character, 

.and value of the improvements made by certain white men, citizens of the United 
.States, since eighteen hmulred and sixty-eight, upon tracts of land settled upon, 
occupied, and improved prior to the date of the treaty creating the Wind River or 
Shoshone Jndian Heservn.tion, in the State of Wyoming, which embraced within 
·-said reservation the tracts of land so previously settled upon, and to report to Con­
gress at the beginning of the next regulnr session the just and equitable value of 
·-said improvements made by the respective claimants thereof~ who have been com­
pelled to abandon t.he same and to remove fl'om the sai<.l reservation, and such other 
. .facts respecting such settlement as may be of value in the adjustment of any claim 
.arising from such removal. 

The Shoshone or Wind River Reservation was created by treaty of 
~T uly 3, 1868 (15 Stats., 763 ). It appears that certain settlers went 
upon the lands embraced within the boundaries of the said reservation 
-when they belonged to the public domain and in good faith made 
improvements and cultivation thereon. Subsequently to their residence 
in 1868 the Government set aside the land, by the said treaty with the 
Shoshone and Bannock tribes of Indians, upon which these improve­
ments had been made. 

These claims were recognized by the Department of the Interior. 
Under date of ;Vlarch 31,1875, United States Indian Agent James Irwtn 
was instructed by this office to make a personal investigation of each 
of the claims of these sett.Iers, the time when each settler located upon 
the lands he then claimed, tlle amount, quality, and value of the land, 
.and the character and then value of any improvements made thereon 
by sa,id claimants and by any others who might be within said reserva-

. tion, and to report the facts in an itemized statement in tabular form 
.to this office that proper action might be had thereon. 

He was instructed to ad vise the settlers of the fact that there were 
.then no funds at the disposal of this office which were applicable to 
the payment of the claims. 

On February 12, 1876, the said Indian agent, James ,Irwin, in accord­
ance with instructions from this office dated March 31, 1875, trans­
mitted a tabular statement of the value of improvements m~de on said 
reservation by William Boyd and certain other settlers, which im­
provements commenced previous to the treaty of July 3, 1868, by 
-actual settlement. 

The following is a copy of the Indian agent's tabular statement 
referred to, put, however, for convenience, in schedule form: 

Estimate of intp1·o·vements made by white men on the Shoshone and Bannock Reservation 
prio,r to treaty of 18687 by James I1·win, United States l11dian agent, Feb1·ua1·y 12, 1876. 

Wm. Boyd, claim dated spring, 1868: 
1 stone dwelling house, 14 by 16. _ ..... _. __ ... __ ... -.- _- . __ ... -_ .. ----
1 log dwelling house, 14 by 16 ...... __ .... _ ..... - ... -•.... -. _ . _. -.... . 
1log building, 14 by 16 -----· ------------------ ----·· -----· ----------
1 vegetable or root cellar. __ .. - .. _ .. __ ..... - .... _ .. ·_. _ ...... _ -- ...... . 
·1 corral. __ . ______ . _. ___ .... _______ • ___ .. ________ .. __ . _ .. ____ . ___ . __ .. 
.1 well ... ____ . __ .. ___ . _. ___ . _. _. _ ..... -__ . _ .. _ ........ _. __ . __ . _ .. __ . _ 
Breaking 60 acres of land. _____ ·-----·--------·----------------·-----
Post and rail fence, 350 rods _ ....... ____ .•.. _. ____ ......... _ .. _. _ ... _ 
100 rods dams and ditches. ___ ...... _... . ... ___ . _ ............... _. __ . 

$300.00 
150.00 
50.00 
50.00 
25.00 
25.00 

300.00 
442.50 
50.00 

Total .. ___ ... __ . _____ .. _ ....•......... _ . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 17 392. 50 

This claim of Wm. Boyd was paid December 4, 1893. 
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Wm. Evans, claim dated May 8, 1868: 
1 adobe dwelling house, 14 by 16 ................................... .. 
1 pole building ..................................................... . 
1 vegetable or root cellar ............................................ . 
1 corral .............. _ .............................................. . 
1 grain house ................•....... _ ...................... • ....... . 
1 well .. _ .............................. - ........ - - ... --- .. -.- .... -.- . 
Brealdng 60 acres .............................. ·----· ............... . 
Post and rail fence, 350 rods ........................................ .. 
100 rods dams and ditches ......... _ ................................ .. 

3 

$200.00 
25.00 
50.00 
50.00 
50.00 
25.00 

300.00 
525.00 
50.00 

Total ......... __ ........ __ ......................................... 1, 275. 00 

This claim of William Evans was paid May 18, 1892. 

James Rogers, claim dated fall, 1867: 
1 adobe dwelling house, 20 by 27 ................................... .. 
2 log houses ... _ ..................................................... . 
2 vegetable or root cellars .......................................... .. 
1 corral ............................................................. . 
Breaking 88 acres of land .......................................... .. 
Post and rail fences, 640 rods ....................................... .. 
125 rods dams and ditches .......................................... .. 

$600.00 
75.00 

100.00 
50.00 

440.00 
864.00 
125.00 

In the original estimate the total is .. . . . .. . . . . • .. .. . • .. .. . . .. . . • • • . 2, 254. 00 

This claim of James Rogers was paid June 20, 1894. 

William Jones, claim dated fall, 1869: 
1log dwelling house, 26 by 14 ....................................... . 
1 log granary ..................................................••.••. 
1 vegetable or root cellar ............................................ . 
1 corral .. - - - . - ..... - . - r • - - ••••• - - - • - - - • - - ••••••• - - - - ••• ·- -- •• - - - - • -- - • 

1 well ................... _ .............................. - -.. - - - ...•.. 
Breaking 20 acres ......... _ ........................... _ .......•...... 
Post ::mel rail fences, 200 rods ....................................... .. 
50 rods dams and ditches ............................................ . 

$100.00 
50.00 
50.00 
25.00 
25.00 

100.00 
100.00 
50.00 

Total .............................•.....•... _·_... . . . • • . . . . . • • . • . . . . 500. 00 

No approp;iation was ever made to pay this claim of William Jones. 

Thomas Cosgrove, claim elated spring, 1868: 
1 sod dwelling house, 18 by 20 ........................ ---- .......... .. 
1 log granary ....................................................... . 
1 vegetable or root cellar ............................................ . 
1 well ....... _ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ................................... . 
Breaking 35 acres of land ........................................... . 
Post and rail fence, 320 rods ........................................ .. 
200 rods dams and ditches .......................................... . 

$100.00 
50.00 
50.00 
25.00 

175.00 
432.00 
200.00 

Total •. ·.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . 1, 032. 00 

This claim of Thomas Cosgrove was paid February 24, 1896. 

D. Williams, claim dated June, 1868: 
1 stone dwelling house, 12 by 16 .................................... .. 
1 vegetable or root cellar ............................................ . 
1 well ......................... _ ...............................•...... 
Breaking 25 acres of laud ........................................•... 
Post and rail fences, 240 rods ........................................ . 
40 rods dams and ditches ........................................... . 

$ioo.oo 
50.00 
25.00 

125.00 
324,00 
30.00 

'l'otal . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . • . . 654. 00 

This claim of D. Williams was paid September 15, 1894. 
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N. P. Davidson, claim dated May 8, 1868: 
1log dwelling, 16 by 20 .............................................. . 
1 log granary .. , .................................................... . 
1 vegetable or Toot celbr ............................................ . 
1 well .......................................................•....... 
Breaking 30 acres of land . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .................... . 
Post and rail fences, 320 rods ........................................ . 
50 rods dams and ditches ............................................ . 

$200. 00· 
150. 0(} 
50.00 
25.00 

150. 00· 
432.00 
100. 00 

Total ................•.................. ~ .......................... 1, 107. 00 

This claim of N. P. Davidson was paid November 16, 1889. 

T. Kutch, claim dated May 8, 1868: 
1 log dwelling house, 15 by 30 ....................................... . 
1 log granary ....................................................... . 
1 vegetable or root cellar ...................................... . ..... . 
1 well ........ . ... . .................................. . .............. . 
Breaking 35 acres of land ........ _ ...............................•... 
Post and rail fences, 320 rods ........................................ . 
50 rods dams and 'ditches ............................................ . 

$250.00 
75. 00· 
50.00 
25.00 

175.00 
432.00 
100. 00 

Total .............................................................. 1, 107. 00 

This claim of Tilford Kutch was paid November 16, 1889. 

John L. Parker, claim dated M,ay 16, 1868: 
1log dwelling house, 14 by 16 ........................................ . 
1 vegetable or root cellar ............................................ . 
1 corral ..........................................•................... 
1 well ...................•............ _ ....•..... __ ... _ .............. . 
Breaking 1 acre of land ............................................. . 

$150.00 
50.00 
20.00 
25.00 
5.00 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • • . . . . . . . . . . • • • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 250. 00 

Payment has been made as above indicated to these settlers by this 
office, except in the case of John L. Parker. Application has not been 
made for the amount due him and it is still unpaid. 

It will be observed from the foregoing statement that the improve­
ments of one of the settlers were made wholly or in part after the con­
clusion of the treaty of 1868, namely, those of William Jonis, the date 
of whose claim is the year 1869. 

This office recommended to the Department the payment of each of 
the respective claims, excepting that of Mr. William Jones, in the 
aggregate $9,317.50. The Department of the Interior, in different com­
munications, recommended an appropriation for the amount necessary 
to pay for the improvements of eight settlers, aggregating the said 
amount. It recommended that Mr. Jones be not paid for his improve­
ments, amounting to $500. He has not been paid this sum. 

Bills were reported favorably from the House Committee on Indian 
Affairs for the relief of these settlers, except Mr. Jones, in the Forty­
sixth, Forty-seventh, Forty-eighth, and Forty-ninth Congresses. By 
act of March 2, 1889 (25 Stats., 998), Congress appropriated $9,371.50 
to enable the Secretary of the Interior to pay the settlers who, in good 
faith, had made settlement in the Wind River Valley previous to the 
time when said valley was included in the Wind River or Shoshone 
Indian Reservation, created, as above stated, by treaty of July 3, 1868, 
the value of their homes, as found by appraisement, with the provision 
that no payment should be made to any one of said settlers until he 
should have :first :finally removed trom the reservation. 

The foregoing is a brief history and statement of the claims of the 
settlers who went upon the Wind River Reservation prior to the date 
of the creation of the same by said treaty. 

It will be observed from the clause contained in said Indian appro­
priation act above referred to that the kind, extent, character, and 



LANDS IN WIND RIVER RESERVATION. 5 

value of the improvements made by certain white men, citizens of the 
United States, since 1868, upon tracts of land settled upon, occupied, 
and improved prior to the date of the treaty creating the said reserva­
tion, which em brace<! therein the tracts of land so previously settled 
upon, were to be investigated, and that the just and equitable value of 
said improvements made by the respective claimants thereof who had 
been compelled to abandon the same and remove from the reservation 
was to be reported to Congress; also that such o.ther facts with respect 
to such settlement as might be of value in the adjustment of any claim 
.arising from such removal was to be investigated and reported upon. 

Under date of September 15, 1898, this office prepared instructions 
for the guidance of such United States Indian inspector as the Secre­
tary of the Interior might see fit to designate for these duties, and sub­
mitted the same to the Secretary of the Interior for his consideration 
.and approval. The inspector was furnished with a history of these 
·Claims. Special attention was invited to the fact that the tabular state­
ment made by the said United States Indian agent indicated the esti­
mate of improvements m11de by white men on the Shoshone Reservation 
prior to the treaty of 1868, although the said agent submitted his report 
to this office on Feburary 12, 1876; that it seemed that his estimate did 
not include the improvements, if any, made by the said white men 
between the date of the treaty of July 3, 1868, and the time of their 
respective removals from the reservation, with the exception of T. 
Kutch and N. P. Davidson; that the said United States Indian agent, 
in his report dated February 12, 1876, stated that the value of the 
improvements of these two parties (Kutch and Davidson) were con­
.sidered at the time they were required to leave the reservation; that 
the kind, extent, character, and value of the improvements made by 
these white men between July 3, 1~68, and the date on which they 
removed from the reservation should be ascertained, estimated, and 
reported upon, excluding from said estimate any improvements made 
prior to the date creating the reservation, namely, July 3~ 1868; or, in 
·other words, the improvements described in the foregoing part of this 
report, the value of which was estimated by James Irwin, Dnited States 
Indian agent of the Shoshone Agency, and submitted to this office 
February 12, 1876. 

The inspector was instructed to investigate the claim of Mr. Jones 
fully and thoroughly and determine, if possible to do so, whether his 
improvements above mentioned, in amount $500, were made prior or 
,subsequent to the date of said treaty of July 3, 1868. 

He was further instructed that. the date when the respective claim­
.ants abandoned the reservation and removed therefrom might be 
ascertained from the records and files of the Shoshone Agenc.y, or 
·determined by evidence to be furnished by the claimants. He was 
further instructed to submit, upon the completion of the investigations 
.and estimates above indicated, his report to you through this office, to 
the end that the same might be laid before Congress. 

United States Indian Inspector C. F. Nesler was instructed by you, 
·On S'eptember 16, 1898, to proceed to make an investigation of the 
claims of the settlers upon the ·wind River Reservation, Wyo., under 
the instructions prepared by this office. 

On November14, 1898, be submitted his report. He states that from 
the testimony of witnesses and old records of the agency it was shown 
that very little in the way of permanent improvements on the said 
reservation could have been made prior to July 3, 1868, as the frequent 
attacks of hostiles at that period rendered work in that direction 
-extremely hazardous; that improvements of a substantial character 
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were not begun on the reservation until about the year 1870; that from 
that time until 1876 a large number of permanent improvements of 
some value were made; that of the original locators, who presented 
claims and were paid for improvements made prior to July 3, 1868, op.ly 
two have claims at this time, namely, William Evens (~vans) and the 
heirs of James Rogers; that the other present claimants are the owners 
of improvements made in part by original locators, and that they have 
acquired title to the same by purchase, except in the case of Stefano 
Gini. 

The inspector further states that it appears from the testimony of the 
claimants that the appraisement of 1876 made by Agent Irwin included 
the value of all improvements at that period, not only those made prior 
to July 3, 1868, but also all improvements in existence at the time of 
the appraisement, namely, February 12, 1876. 

In view of these facts, and as the above-described claims were fully 
adjusted according to the act of Congress approved March 2, 1869, up 
to February 12, 1876, the inspector states that it was presumed that 
the intent of Congress as expressed in said clause was to ascertain the 
kind, extent, character, and value of the improvements made by white 
men since 1876 and up to the time of their removal from the reservation 
with a view of adjusting existing claims and preventing others of a like , 
nature; that with this object in view it was necessary to obtain infor­
mation as to what improvements were made after February 12, 1876, 
and up to tbe time of the removal of the claimants as well as to ascer­
tain the character and value of the same; that in order to determine 
this the testimony of the claimants and witnesses was taken upon these 
matters and such official correspondence obtained relative to them as 
could be found among the files of the agency. The inspector attached 
to the testimony in each case his estimate of the value of the perma­
nent improvements of each claimant as they existed at the time of 
taking the same and such as bore evidence of having existed during 
the periods mentioned. For convenience he marked the testimony in 
the case of each claimant as an exhibit, commencing with the letter A. 
He summarized in his report the testimony bearing upon each claim, 
and gave the value of the improvements thereof as estimated not only 
by himself but also by the claimant and other witnesses. 

CLAIM OF WILLIAM EVENS, EXHIBIT A. 

The inspector states in his report that Mr. Evens was an original 
locator; that his testimony shows that he established a location on 
unsurveyed land in the Wind River Valley about May 12, 1868, which 
land afterwards became a part of the Wind Hiver or Shoshone Reserva­
tion; that he resjded thereon continually until his removal of his own 
accord on November 10, 1890; that his statements show that very little 
had been done by him in the way of improvements up to August, 1868, 
a month after the conclusion of the treaty; that he presents a claim 
for improvements made between February 12, 1876, and November 10, 
1890, amounting to $2,885, as follows: 
One frame dwelling, 20 by 22 feet, with adobe extension, 12 by 20 feet ....... $1,600 
320 rods offence _____ ............ ------·· ...... ··---- ...... ---- ...... ·----- 390 
An adobe stable, granary, and chicken house_ ...... ____ . __ . __ . __ ............ 150 
320 rods of ditch ............ _ ........................................... _... 320 
360 rods of fence . __ ...... __ . ___ . _ ...................... _____ ... . . . . . . . . . . . . 270 
Breaking 35 acres of ground ............. __ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 105 
Log cabin, 16 by 20 feet _____ ._ ..... __ .... __ ................... _.. . . . . . . . . . . 50 

'T'otal . . . . . . . • • • • . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . 2, 885 
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The inspector submits the testimony of J. K. Moore, trader on tl1e 
Shoshone Reservation, upon this case. Mr. Moore states that $2,000 or 
$2,500 would, in his opinion, be a fair valuation of these improvements. 

He next submits the testimony of F. G. Burnett, agency farmer, a 
disinterested witness, who places the value of these improvements at 
$1,600. 

The inspector attached to the testimony in this case his appraisement 
of the improvements last above described. He values them at $2,293 .. 

Under date of May 29, 188!, Mr. Evens was notified through the 
United States Indian agent of the Shoshone Agency that lte bad no 
legal claim against the Government by reason of the fact that he had· 
made improvements ou unsurveyed lands; that he would be permitted 
to remain temporarily upon the reservation with the understanding,. 
however, that he should make no further improvements and hold him­
self in readiness to move off' the reservation as soon as the claim of. 
$1,275, first above mentioned, should be adjusted by Congress. 

It is proper to state in this connection that the payment of the origi­
nal claims of these settlers was urged by themselves and not at the 
request of this office. The office has always denied that they had any;­
legal claim to pay for -their improvements, as they had settled upon~ 
unsurveyed lands to which they could acquire no title or vested rights 
as against the United States. It admitted, however, that they had an 
equitable claim to payment for the value of their improvements made 
by them before the land was appropriated for other purposes by the 
Government. It has always been held by the o~ce that they have no 
possible claim, legal or equitable, for improvements made since that 
time; that at any time after the establishment of the reservation they 
could legally have been removed therefrom. Under date of March 24,. 
1890, this office instructed the United States Indian agent of the Sho­
shone Agency to notify the several parties above named that they were 
expected to remove from the reservation within a reasonable time; that 
should they refuse or negle.ct to do so, to report the matter for further 
instructions. 

On May 15, 1890, the United States Indian agent advised this office 
that he bad notified, as directed, the several parties named, to wit: 
Evens, Rogers, Jones, and Yarnell, of the full text of the instructions 
contained in office letter last mentioned; that they willingly assented 
to comply with anything thought to be best for all concerned. Subse­
quent correspondence was bad with the Shoshone Indian agent by this 
office with respect to the removal of these parties. On November 1, 
18~3, the Indian agent reported that he had that day removed from the 
Shoshone Reservation Messrs. William Jones and William Rogers, as 
they had failed to comply with instructions theretofore given by this 
office; that the claims of other settlers bad been vacated. It will be. 
observed from the foregoing remarks that this office is of the opinion 
that Mr. William Evens is not legally entitled to payment for the 
improvements made by him upon the reservation from February 127' 
1876, up to the time of his removal therefrom. If he is allowed any­
thing for these improvements, it will be on account of the generosity 
of Congress in dealing with pioneers and settlers on the pqblic domain,. 
and not, as it is believed, on account of any just, legal, or equitable 
rights against the Government for such payment. With these remarks, 
the said claim of Mr. Evens is. submitted for your consideration. 
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0L.A.IM OF WILLIAM H. ROGERS, ADMINISTR.A.1'0R OF THE EST.A.i'E 
OF JAMES ROGERS, DECEASED, EXHIBIT B. 

'l'he inspector states that Mr. James Rogers was an original locator 
upon unsurveyed lands in the Wind River Valley; that he located 
therein during the fall of 1867; that thA lands upon which he settled 
were subsequently embraced in the reservation; that from the testi­
mony of William H. Rogers, it appears that the original locator, James , 
Rogers, and his heirs resided continuously upon the land up to the 
time of their removal, except for a short period in the year 187 4; that 
from the testimony of said William H. Rogers, it appears that the claim 
for the value of the improvements made prior to February 12, 1876, has 
been fully adjusted; that he presents a claim for improvements made 
between February 12, 1876, and October 31, 18937 the date he was 
ordered to remove from the reservation, amounting to $7,866.20, as 
follows: 
1 'log stable, 35 by 19, valued at .. __ .... _ --· ........... L................. $500.00 
~ lo¥ granary, 19 by ~8, valued at .. .. .. .. . .. . .. .. . . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 300.00 

2-story stone dwellmg bouse, .30 by 34 .................................. 4, 000.00 
1 root cellar, 14 by 17 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100. 00 
·2t miles of fence, 2 wjres, and 2 poles ................... : ......... _._ ...... 1, 555. 20 
llarge ditch, three-fourths mile ..................................... __ .. _ 675. 00· 
1 ditch, three-fourths milo .............................. _................ 1!'50. 00 
3 laterals, one-fourth miltl each ........................ _ .. . . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. 75. 00 
Breaking and sowing 30 acres alfalfa..................................... 275.00 
300 pounds timothy seed sown.... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. . . .. .. . .. . . .. .. . . . . . . 36. 00 
Breaking· and cultivating 40 acres of ground .................. _. ____ .. _... 200. 00 

Total ....... - . - .... -. _. _ .................................... _.. . . . . 7, 866. 20 

The inspector submits the testimony of J. K. Moor.e, a disinterested 
witness, who states that hA considers $5,000 a fair valuation for these 
improvements; also the testimony of F. G. Burnett, agency farmer, who 
is also a disint<'rested witness and is familiar with the improvements 
made. Mr. Burnett thinks that a fair valuation of these improvements 
would not exceed $4,000. The inspector's estimate is $5,363. 

It appears that the former claim of James Rogers was overpaid by 
$300 (see above). It will be adjusted if appropriation is made in this 
case. 

There is attached to the testimony in this case a document which the 
inspector state~ was founq amoug the papers at the Shoshone Agency, . 
wherein one Stefano Gini is acknowledged to be the owner of the 
undivided one-llalf of the improvements embraced in the claim of James 
Rogers. 

It appears from thi~S document that said Stefano Gini was a partner 
of James Rogers (now deceased) in all improvements made on the res­
ervation by hi111 prior to February 12, 1876; that at that time Rogers 
and Gini dissolved partnership; that Gini made improvements of his 
own about one-fourth of a mile east of those of Hogers and has pre­
sented a claim for them; that the document, from its wording and date, 
showed Gini to be entitled to half of the present claim of the estate of 
Jam~s Hogers, which was denied by William H. Hoger~, administrator 
{)f said estate; that, fearing a complication or perhaps a further claim, 
it was considered advisable to obtain a release front Gini, acknowledged 
before a clerk of a court of record; tl1at this was done. The inspector 
attaches to the papers in the case the agreement of release mentioned, 
to which your special atteution is hereby in vi ted. 

The facts in the case of James H.ogers and his administrator are simi­
lar to those as to improvements, removal, etc., of Mr. Evens, above 
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n1entioned. The remarks made by this office in regard to the claim of 
Mr. Evens are applicable to the claim of the estate of James Rogers, 
deceased. 

CLAIM OF WILLIAM JONES, EXHIBIT C. 

The inspector states that Mr. Jones acquired title to the improve­
ments by purchase; that under the appraisement of 1876 be presented 
a claim for improvements amounting to $500, which claim was not 
approved by this office on the ground that his improvements were shown 
by Agent Irwin to have been made wholly or in part after the conclu­
sion of the treaty of 1868; that it appears from the testimony of Mr. 
Jones that be came into the valley with the intention of locating, but 
that he made no improvements prior to the year 1873, when he came 
into possession of certain improvements by purchase; that the original 
locators upon the land embracing the improvements purchased by Mr. 
Jones were Robert Espey and Tip Trimble (both now deceased); that 
they disposed of their improvements to one Thomas Cosgrove (also now 
deceased); that William Jones purchased the improvements from Mr. 
Cosgrove in the year 1873; that as no adjustment has been made of the 
previous claim of Mr. Jones, he now presents a claim for all improvements, 
including those made prior to 1868 by Espey and TrimlJle, as well as 
those made subsequently and up to the time he was ordered to remove 
from the reservation, October 31, 189·1, amounting, in the aggregate, to 
$3,540. . 

The following is a schedule of the improvements made prior to Feb­
ruary 12, 1876, alleged to have been purchased by Mr. Jones: 
1log cabin, 14 by 16 .................................................... . 
1 sh eel kitchen .......................................................... . 
1 stable .......................................... .. ...•................... 
Outhouses ............................................................. .. 
1 chicken house .............................•............................ 
One-half mlle of fence ................................................... . 
Ditches and laterals .................................................... . 
15 acres of land broken ................................................ .. 

$150.00 
40.00 
50.00 
10.00 
25.00 
40.00 
75.00 
90.00 

Total . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 480. 00 

The following is a schedule of the improvements . made by Mr. Jones 
aft,er February 12, 1876: 
1log barn, erected in 1891...... .. .. .. . .. . .. .. .. .. . .. . . .. . .. .. . . .. .. .. .. .. $550.00 
1 shed ancl. outhouse, erected in 1891.... .. .. .. . .. . .. .. . . .. . .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. 150. 00 
Repairs on fence previously ere.cted .................................. _... 20. 00 
1 gTauary. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100. 00 
1 ice house.... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 100. 00 
1 root cellar, 15 by 20 . .. . . .. .. .. . .. . .. .. . .. . . .. . .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. . . . .. .. . .. 50. 00 
Loss ou 20 tons of hay, at $4.50 per ton................................... 90.00 
1 c1 welling house.... .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. . . .. . .. .. . . .. .. .. .. . .. . .. .. .. . . .. . 2, 000. 00 

Total .............................................................. ,3, 060. 00 

Grand total of alleged improvements made and purchased by Mr. 
Jones . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3, 540. 00 

The inspector presents the testimony of J. K. 1.\Ioore, Indian trader, 
who, while apparently not familiar with the improvements made on the 
Jones place prior to 1876, states that be would consider $2,000 a fair 
valuation for the improvements made between 1876 and the time of the 
removal of Mr. Jones from the reservation; also the testimony of F. B. 
Burnett, agency farmer, who considers $2,500 a fair valuation for all 
the improvements claimed by Mr. J oues. 



10 LANDS IN WIND RIVER RESERVATION. 

The inspector appraises the improvements of Mr. Jones at $2,875 . . 
This report contains a full history of the claim of Mr. Jones. It is 

thought by this office that he is without any just, legal, or equitable 
claim against the Government for improvement's made by him. He 
went upon the reservation, as it appears in 1873-long after it was set 
aside for the Indians by treaty stipulations. He knew he had no rights 
thereon, and yet he purchased certain alleged improvements and per­
sisted in continuing his residence thereon and in making other improve­
ments. If he obtains payment for his claim for improvements, it will 
certainly be in the nature of a gift by Congress rather than any right 
which he may have as against the Government .. 

CLAIM OF NELSON YAUNELL, EXHIBIT D. 

The inspector states that the testimony of Mr. Yarnell shows that he 
went upon the reservation in the year 1870 as a Government employee; 
that he made no improvements prior to 1881; that his claim was origi­
nallylocated by one Dotypriorto 1868, who sold the improvements in 1869 
to William Boyd, a squaw man, who, it appears, made some improvements 
and presented a claim, which was adjusted according to the appraise­
ment made by Agent Irwin in 1876; that the claim was then purchased 
from Boyd by one Charles H. Oldham, a Government employee, in 
1877; that evidently no improvements of any importance were added 
by Oldham between the time of the purchase from Boyd, in the year 
1877, up to the time of the purchase by Yarnell, in 1881; that as a 
description of the improvements existing at the time of the purchase 
by Yarnell, as is shown in his own testimony, compares favorably with 
the value of the improvements as appraised by Agent Irwin in 1876, 
Mr. Yarnell's claim therefore embraces a period bet,ween J881 and 
the time he was ordered to remove from the reservation, October 31, 
1893. 

Mr. Yarnell's claim, as presented, amounts to $1,745. 
The following is a schedule of his improvements: 

1 barn, log, to accommodate :five animals .......... _ .... _ ... _ . _ ... _______ .. 
New roof on house and replastering inside and out .. _ ...... ___ ...... __ .. __ 
1 adobe chicken house ...... ·----- .......... ____ .. ---· ................... . 
2i miles barbed-wire fence_ ................................... __ ........ _ 
Breaking and cultivating 40 acres of ground ...... ___ . __ ................. . 
Breaking and cultivating 15 acres of ground ........ __ .................... · 
400 rods of ditch ___ .... __________ ..... __ ................. _ ..... _____ ... .. 
50 tons of bay seized by the acting Indian agent._ .. __ ..... _ .... _. ___ .... . 

$200.00 
50.00 
40.00 

640.00 
200.00 
75.00 
40.00 

500.00 

Total ..... _ - -...... _ .. . - - .................... __ .... _ ..... _ .... _ .. _ _ 1, 7 45. 00 

The inspector states that Mr. B. C. Burnett~ agency farmer, is thor­
oughly familiar with these improvements, and considers $1,200 a fair 
valuation. His appraisement is $1,355. 

It is thought that Mr. Tarnell is not entitled, either in law or equity, 
to payment for any portion of his claim. The matter, however, is sub­
mitted to you for your consideration. 

CLAIM OF STEFANO GINI, EXHIBIT E. 

The inspector states that Mr. Gini was an original locator and partner 
of James Rogers, deceased (whose .claim is rep~esented in Exhibit B), 
up to February 12, 1876, in which he had a half interest, and at which 
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time he dissolved partnership with Mr. Rogers and established improve­
ments of his own. The schedule of his improvements is as follows: 
1 log house, 15 by 18 . . . . . . . . . . . • • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . $150. 00 
1log stable, 16 by 32 ..... . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 200. 00 
1 root cellar, 14 by 16. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . •. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 50. 00 
2 corrals . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25. 00 

Total .................. ~. . . . . • • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . 425. 00 

The inspector states that the improvements in this case were entirely 
removed by a former superintendent of the Wind River boarding school, 
the lands on which they were situated being now a portion of the school 
reserve; that Mr. Gini. was ordered to remove from the reservation on 
October 1, 1893, but wa8 permitted to remain thereon by the agent until 
the spring of 1894; that the said Mr. Burnett values the improvements 
of Gini at $800. · 

The inspector appraises these improvements at $425, adding that this 
appraisement is based upon information obtained from other parties. 

It is not seen by this office how Mr. Gini has any claim whatever for 
improvements made by him after 1876. The evidence shows ,that he 
sold his improvements up to that date to James Rogers, now deceased, 
for which the estate of Rogers has been paid. Mr. Gini knew that the 
lands had been appropriated for the Indians and that he had no right 
whatever to begin anew improvements upon the reservation. His claim 
is certainly without any foundation, either in law or equity. 

Duplicate copies of this report are herewith inclosed; also duplicate 
copies of Inspector Nesler's report, and all the accompanying papers, to 
the end that the same may be transmitted to Congress as provided in 
the clause of the Indian appropriation act mentioned. 

The original papers are also transmitted herewith. It is thought 
that they should be returned to this office when they shall have served 
their purpose with the Department. 

Very respectfully, your obedient servant, 
A. 0. TONNER, 

Acting Commiss-ioner. 
The SEORE'l'.A.RY OF 'l'HE IN'l'ERioR. 

UNI'l'ED STATES lNDIAN SERVICE, 
Shoshone Agency, Wyo., November 14, 18.98. 

SIR: Complying· with the instructions prepared by the honorable 
Commissioner of Indian Affairs, in the matter of an investigation of 
the claims of certain settlers upon the Wind River or Shoshone Reser­
vation, Wyo., and transmitted with your letter of September 16 last, I 
have the honor to submit the following report: 

I would state that in conducting the investigation of the claims of 
the settlers herein mentioned, it was found difficult to closely follow 
the said instructions, for reasons which will appear. 
· From the testimony of witnesses and old records of the agency oftice 

it is shown that very little in the way o( permanent improvements on 
this reservation could have been made prior to July 3, 1868, as the 
frequent attacks of hostiles at this period rendered work in that direc­
tion extremely hazardous. 

Improvements of a substantial character were not begun until about 
1870, and from that time until 1876 a large number of permanent 
improvements of some value were made. 
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Of the original locators who presented cla,ims and were paid for 
improvements made prior to July 3, 1868, only two have claims· at th!s 
time, William Evens and the heirs of James Rogers, the other claims 
ants being the owners of improvements made in part by original locator­
and who acquired title to the same by purchase, except in the case of 
Stefano Gini. 

It appears from the testimony of the claimants that the appraisement 
of 1876 made by Agent Irwin included the value of all improvements 
at that period; not only those made prior to July H, 1868, but also all 
improvements in existence at the time of appraisement February12, 1876. 

In view of these facts, and as these claims were fully adjusted accord­
ing to an act of Congress, March 2, 1889, up to February 12, l 876, it 
is presumed that the intent of the clause in the appropriation act, 
"Public--No.l75," is for the purpose of ascertaining "the kind, extent, 
character, and value of the improvements . made by white men" since 
1876 and up to the time of their removal from the reservation, with 
a view of adjusting existing claims and preventing others of a like 
nature. · 

With 'this object in view, it was neces~ary to obtain information as to 
what improvements were made subsequeut to .February 12, 1876, and 
up to the time of the removal of the claimants, as well as to ascertain 
the character and value of the same. 

In order to determine this, the testimony of the claimants and wit­
nesses was taken and is herewith submitted, together with such official 
correspondence relative to them as could be found among the files of 
the agency. Attached to the testimony will be found a just and fair 
estimate of the value of the permanent improvements of each claimant 
as at present existing or bearing evidence of having existed during the 
periods mentioned. 

For convenience, the testimony in the case of ~ ach claimant is marked 
as an exhibit and will be referred to in alphabetical order. 

Exh·ibit A.-Claim of William Evens, an originaJ locator. First is 
shown the testimo:Qy of Mr. Eveus, wherein he states that he estab­
lished a location on unsurveyed land in the Wind River Valley about 
May 12, 1868, wuich land afterwards became part of the reservation, 
and has resided thereon continuously ·until his removal. His state­
ment also shows that very little ·had been done in the way of improving 
up to August, 1868, a m6nth after the conclusion of the treaty. 

Mr. Evens left the reservation of his own accord November 10, 1890, 
and presents a claim for improvements made between February 12, 
1876, and November 10, 1890, amounting to $2,885. 

Following this is the testimony of J. K. Moore, an Indian trader on 
the reservation, who states under oath that $2,000 or $2,500 would, in 
his opinion, be a fair valuation of these improvements. · 

Next is subrnitted the testimony of F. G. Burnett, agency farmer, a 
disinterested witnes~, who, under oath, placesthevalueoftheseimprove­
ments at $1,600. 

Attached to the above will also be found my appraisement, with a 
description of each improvemeut obtained by actual measurement, and 
valued at $2,2U3. • 

E xhibit B.-Claim of William H. Rogers, administrator of the e~tate 
of James Rogers, also an original locator. First is shown the testi­
mony of William H. Rogers, from which it would appear that James 
Rogers located on unsurveyed land in the Wind River Valley in the 
fall of 1867, which land was subsequently embraced in and made a part 
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of' the reservation, and on which l(e or his heirs resided continuously 
up to the time of their removal~ except for a short period in 187 4. 

His testimony shows that his claim for the value of improvements 
made prior to February 12, 1876, was fully adjusted, but he presents a 
claim for improvements made between February 12, 1876, and October 
31, 1893, the time he was ordered to remove (copy of order attached), 
amounting to $7,366.20. Next is shown the testimony of J. K. Moore, 
a disinterested witness, who states under oath that he considers $5,000 
a fair valuation for these improvements. 

Next will be found the testimony of F. G. Burnett, agency farmer, 
who is also a disinterested witness and familiar with the improvements 
made. This witness testifies that the value of these improvements 
would not exceed $4,000. 

Following this is submitted my estimate of the value of the improve­
ments in this case, with a description of each as obtained by actual 
measurement, and amounting to $5,363. 

Next is shown a document found among the papers at the agency 
wherein. one Stefano Gin.i is acknowledged to be the owner of the 
undivided one-half of the improvements embraced in the claim of the 
estate of James Rogers. It appears that Stefano Gini was a partner 
of James Rogers in all improvements made on the reservation by him 
prior to February 12, 187tL At that time Rogers and Gini di~solved 
partnership, and Gini made improvements of his own about one-fourth 
of a mile east of those of Rogers and has presented a claim for them. 
The document, from its wording and date, would show Gini to be 
entitled to half of the present claim of the estate of James Rogers, 
which was dmlied by William H. Rogers. Fearing a complication, or 
perhaps a further claim, it was considered advisable to obtain a release 
from Gini acknowledged before a clerk of a court of record. This was 
done and follows the document above referred to. 

Exhibit G.-Claim of William Jones, who acquired title to improve­
ments by purchase. Mr. Jones, under the appraisement of 1876, pre­
sented a claim for improvements amounting to $500 in value, which 
claim was not approved on the ground that his improvements were 
shown by the tabular statement of Agent Irwin to have been made 
wholly or in part after the conclusion of the treaty of 1868. · 

The instructions prepared by the honorable Commissioner referred 
particularly to the claim of William J-ones. It was desired that Mr. 
Jones's claim be thoroughly investigated, to "determine, if possible to 
do so, whether his improvements, in amount $500, mentioned in the 
foregoing table, were made prior to the date of said treaty-July 3, 
1868." 

This information is shown in his testimony herewith presented. It 
appears that he came into the valley with the intention of locating, but 
made no improvements prior to 1873, when he came into possession 
of certain improvements by purchase. The testimony shows that 
the original locators were Robert Espey and Tip Trimble (both now 
deceased), who made improvements which they disposed of to Thomas 
Cosgrove (now deceased), from whom William Jones purchased them 
in 1873. No adjustment having been made of the previous claim, Mr. 
Jones now presents a claim for all improvements, including those made 
prior to 1868 by Espey and Trimble, as well as those made subse­
quently and up to the time he was ordered to remove, October 31, 1893 
(copy of order to remove attached), amounting to $3,540. 

Following this is presented the testimony of J. K. Moore, Indian 
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trader, who, while apparently not familiar with the improvements made 
on the J·ones place prior to 1876, testifies under oath that he would 
consider $2,000 a fair valuation for improvements made between 1876 
and the time of Mr. Jones's removal. · 

Next will be found the testimony of F. G. Burnett, agency farmer, 
who states under oath that he would consider $2,500 a fair valuation 
of all improvements claimed by Mr. Jones. 

A complete list of the improvements as appraised by myself follows, 
showing the nature of the improvements and containing a description 
of eacl1 as ascertained by actual measurements. Those marked X 
bore sufficient evidence of having existed to enable me to determine 
their character and size. I have appraised the value of Mr. Jones's 
improvements at $~,875. 

Exhib·it D.-Claim for improvements presented by Nelson Yarnall, 
who acquired title to the same by purchase. Mr. Yarnall's testimony 
shows tllat he came upon the reservation in 1870 as a Government 
employee, but made no improvements prior to 1881. This claim, it is 
learned from the testimony of witness F. G. Burnett, wa,s originally 
located by one Doty prior to 1868, who sold the improvements in 1869 
to vVilliam Boyd, "a squaw man," who, it would appear, made some 
improvements and presented a claim, which was adjusted according to 
the appraisement made by Agent Irwin in 1R76. The claim was then 
purchased fi·om Boyd by one Charles H. Oldham, a Government em­
ployee, in 1877. Evidently no improvements of any importance were 
added by Oldham between the time of his purchase from Boyd, in 1877, 
up to the time of purchase by 1\fr. Yarnall, in 1881. As a description 
of the improvements existing at the time of the purchase by Yarnall, as 
shown in his testimony, compares favorably with the tabular statement 
of the improvements as appraised by Agent Irwin in 1876, Mr. Yarnall's 
claim, therefon~, em braces a period between 1881 and the time he was 
ordered to remove, October 31, 1~93. (Copy of order to remove 
attached.) Mr. Yarnall's claim, as presented, amounts to $1,745. 

Witness Burnett, thoroughly familiar with these improvements, con­
siders $1,200 a fair valuation. 

I consider $1,355 a fair appraisement of the value of these improve­
ments and submit a list of each, with a description obtained by actual 
measurement. 

Exhibit E.-Claim of Stefano Gini, an original locator a'nd partner of 
James Rogers, deceased, whose claim is represented in Exhibit. B. 
Stefano Gini, from evidence shown, was an original locator as partner 
in the improvements of James Rogers, owning a half interest iu the 
same until the time of appraisement, in 1876, at which time Gini dissolved 
partnership and established improvements of his own. 

The improvements in this case have been entirely removed by a 
former superintendent of the Wind River Boarding School, the land on 
which they were situated bein'g now a portion of the school reserve. Mr. 
Gini was ordered to remove on October 1,1893 (copy of order attached), 
but was permitted by the agent to remain until the spring of 1894. He 
presents a claim arp.ounting to $425, which is valued by witness Burnett 
at $800. My appraisement of these improvements is based upon infor­
mation obtained from others, and I would place their value at $425. 

Attention is called to a copy of a letter attached to the testimony of 
Evens, Jon as, and Rogers, as well as to copies of official correspondence 
relative to these cases, marked Exhibit F. 

Among the items of improvements mentioned by claimants will be 
found, in the case of Mr. Yarnall, the value of 50 tons of hay, $500. In 
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his testimony Mr. Yarnall states that be did not leave the reservation 
until October 31,1893, while in Exhibit F will be found correspondence 
showing that Mr. Yarnall had vacated his claim in the spring of 1893. 
Mr. Jones claims the loss on 20 tons of hay; Mr. Rogers, 300 pounds 
of seed and sowing 30 acres of alfalfa. In determining the value of the 
improvements claimed these items could not be considered, for the rea­
son that they did not exist; they were not permanent in charaeter and 
it was to some extent the fault of the claimants tbat they were lost. 

It will also be observed that there is a discrepancy in the description 
of the improvements existing in 1876, as mentioned by claimants, and 
those shown in the tabular statement of Agent Irwin. Some difference 
is also noticeable between the description of the items as exist to-day, 
and obtained by actual measurement and submitted in my estimates, 
as compared with those mentioned by claimants in their testimony. 
This is undoubtedly due to the fact that claimants relied entirely upon 
memory, and bad in no instance kept memorandums of their improve­
ments. 

It is considered unnecessary to speak or refer to the equity of these 
claims. The facts are here, and, embodied with the testimony pre­
sented, will no doubt permit of a clear understanding of the claim of 
each individual. 
· Of the original settlers mentioned in the appraisement of 1876, Wil­
liams, Cosgrove, Kutch, and Parker are dead, and their claims were 
fully adjusted according to the above-mentioned appraisement. Boyd 
relinquished the claim now presented by Yarnall, and the payment of 
November 16, 1889, to Davidson, extinguished any claim he might have 
for improvements. 

Very respectfully, 0. F. NESLER, 
United States Fn'dian Inspector. 

The SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR, 
(Through the Commissioner of Indian Affairs), 

lVashington, ]), 0. 

EXHIBIT A. 

Deposition of William Evens, taken at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Novernber 71 1898, 1·elative 
to imp1·oveme~tts made on the Shoshone Rese1·vation, Wyo., subsequent to 1876. 

Q. State your name and residence.-A. William Evens, Ogden, Utah. 
Q. Are you a native-born citizen of the United States~-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. When did you first locate on the reservation ~-A. About May 12, 1868. 
Q. You made improvements on the reservation during the time you resided on 

it~-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Were you ever paid for any of these improvements~-A. Yes, sir; part of them. 
Q. Were you paid for all improvements made up to the time of Agent Irwin's 

appraisement, in 1876~-A. Yes, sir; I was paid according to his appraisement. 
Q. Was the appraisement satisfactory at that time~---;A. No, sir; it was not. 
Q. Why not~-A. Because he did not appraise them at what they were worth. 
Q. What did you consider them worth ~-A. About double the amount appraised. 
Q. Were you aware of the fact that it was unsurveyed land and that you could not 

obtain title to it~-A. I knew it was unsurveyed land, but did not know I could not 
obtain title to it. 

Q. When did you learn that it was set aside as a reservation ~-A. About August, 
1868. . 

Q. 'Vhat improvements had you made up to that time~-A. Not many improve­
ments. 

Q. Then why did you remain ~-A. Because we supposed we would get title or get 
paid for it. 
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Q. What improvements were made between the time you located and the time of 
the appraisement~-A.-

An adobe house, about 12 by 18 feet, worth about ......... - ...... _ . ... . - .. 
About 200 rods fence, 4 poles, 2 posts to rod ....•.....•... __ ._ ... _. _ ...... . 
About 160 rods ditch .. __ .. ___ .. ___ .. ____ .. ____ .. __ ............... _ .. ___ .. 
Log stable, 12 by 20 feet ................................................. . 
Cattle corral ............................................................ . 
Root cellar, 20 by 40 feet .... _ ...... , ............ _. _ ....... : _ .... _ ..... __ . 
Well ...... ____ .. ____ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . • . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ............ _ . _ . _ .. ___ . 
Twenty acres land, broken, at $6 per acre ..... _ ... ___ ......... __ ......... . 
Granary attached to stable .. _ ... __ ._ ... _ .................... _ . .. ....... _. 

$700.00 
200.00 
160.00 
100.00 
150.00 
100.00 
20.00 

120.00 
40.00 

1,590.00 

Q. Are those all the improvements made from May, 1868, to February, 1876 ~-A. 
That is all I can remember. 

Q. From the value you place on these improvements, how is it that you previ­
ously stated that you considered Dr. Irwin's appraisement unfaid-A. Because we 
were prevented from making any further improvements by being frequently told by 
the agent that we were taking our own chanct~s in making these improvements. 

Q. When did you leave the reservation ~-A. In November, 1890. 
Q. You removed of your own accord ~-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Had you received notice to do so~-A. No, sir. 
Q. Why did you go~-A. Because we were given to understand that is was only a 

question of time when we would be removed. 
Q. I would like to have you give me a list of improvements made after 1876 and up 

to the time of your removaL-A.-

A frame dwelling 20 by 22 feet, with adobe extension 12 by 20 feet ... ,._ .. . 
520 rods fencing ... _. _ .... _ ..... _ ..... _ ................................. . 
An adobe stable, granary, and chicken house ..... _ ..... _ ... _ ........... . 
320 rods di tcb. .......................................... _ ............. _ .. 

Q. Is that all ~-A. I believe that is all I can remember. 

$1,600.00 
390.00 
150.00 
320.00 

2,460.00 

Q. Where are these improvements located ~-A. Al•out one-fourth of a mile east of 
the agency. . 

Q. If these improvements were located at or near Lander, what would they be 
worth ~-A. About the same. 

Q. Were you in the employ of the Government a,t any time~-A. I was never in 
the employ of the Government. 

Q. Did you enjoy any privileges or benefits not accorded ordinary citizens while 
residing on the reservation ~-A . . No. 

Q. Did you reside here continuously between 1868 and 1890~-A. Yes; I did. 
Q. Did you have any cattle on the reservation ~-A. I did. 
Q. Did you pay_ a grazing tax on ·them ~-A. Not at all times. 
Q. In view of the fact that you enjoyed the use of these improvements for anum­

ber of years, don't you think the Government is entitled to an offset in considering 
this claim f-A. No, sir. 

Q. You say that you have other improvements which you forgot to mention; what 
are they ~-A.-

360 rods of fence, valued at ......................................... _.. . . . . $270. 00 
Breaking 35 aeres of ground ................................. . _............ 105.00 
Log cabin, 16 by 20 .................... _.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . 50. 00 

425.00 

Q. Were these improvements also made between 1876 and the date of your re­
moval ~-A. Yes, sir. 

Q. And they are to be included in your present claim ~-A. Yes, sir. 
WILLIAM EVENS. 

Personally appeared before me William Evens, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
· and says that he has read the foregoing testimony, and that the statements therein 
contained are true. 

WILUAM EVENS. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 7th day of November, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspecto1·. 
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Depositi.on of James K. Mo01·e, taktJn at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Octobm· 31, 1898, 1·elative 
to imp1·ove·ments .made on the Shoshone Reservation, Wyo ., by William Evens. 

Q. What is your name and residence~-A. James K. Moore, Fort Washakie, Wyo. 
Q. You are an Indian traded-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. \Vben did you first come on the reservation ~-A. I located at Camp Brown 

(now the town of Lander and then a part of the re~ervation) in 1870 and moved to 
Fort Washakie in 1871. 

Q. Are you acquainted with ·william Eveos~-A. I am. 
Q. Do you know anything in regard to the improvements made by Mr. Evens 

since 1876 and np to the time of his removal ~-A. I am not thoroughly familiar with 
them, but kuow he made many valuable improvements on the claim; perhaps 
between $2,000 and $2,500. 

Q. If you were the owner .of
1
the improvements would you consider that amount 

a fair adjustment of the claim f-A. I would. 
Q. If these improvements were situated at or near Lander what would they be 

worth ~-A. About the same. 
JAMES K. MOO HE. 

Personally appeared before rr1e James K. Moore, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that he has read the foregoing testimony and that the statements contained 
therein al'e true. 

JAMES K. MOORE. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day of October, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspector. 

Deposition of JJ'. G. B~o·nett, taken at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Not·embm· 4, 1898, 1·elative 
to imp1·ovements made by William Evans on the Shoshone Resen;ation, Wyo. 

Q. State your name, occupation, and residence.-A. F. G. Burnett; additional 
farmer; Shoshone Agency, Wyo. 

Q. When did you first come to the reservation ~-A. I came here with Agent Irwin 
in May, 1871, and have been in the employ of the Government or lived in the vicinity 
since. 

Q. Are you familiar with the improvements made by William Evans since the 
appraisement of Agent Irwin in 1876~-A. I am. 

Q. Do you understand that all improvements made prior to 1876 vvere paid fod­
A. I do. 

Q. Tell me what you can in regard to a claim for improvements made by William 
Evans on this reservation subsequent to 1876, and up to the time of his leaving the 
reservation ~-A. A frame dwelling with an adobe extension, an ice house, and 
about 250 rods ditch. 

Q. Is that all ~-A. That i~ all I remember. 
Q. What would you consider a fair valuation for the improvements made by Wil­

liam Evens since 1876 and up to the time of his leaving the reservation ~-A. About 
$1,600. 

Q. W ould you consider that a fair adjustment of his claim ~-A. I would. 
F. G. BURNETT. 

Personally appeared before me F. G. Burnett, who, being duly sworn, deposes and 
says that be bas read the foregoing testimony, and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me thisi 4th day of November, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspect01·. 

Appra·isement madtJ by Inspecto1· Nesler of the imp1·ovmnents made on the Shoshone 
Rese1·vation, Wyo ., s·ubsequent to 1876 and claimed by William Evens. 

1 dwelling, adobe and frame, 26 by 30 ........ __ ... ____ . __ . _________ . ____ _ 
1log outhouse, 8 by 10 . -- ... ____ .... ____ ---- __ .... __ .. ______ .. ____ . ____ . 
1 log stable, 16 by 20 ____ . __ ......... ___ ... __ .... ____ . ____ . ____________ __ 
1log ice house, 15 by 15 ______ .. ____ .......... __ .... __ .... __ .... ________ .. 
226 rods ditch .......... __ ........ ____ ..... __ .. _ ..... ___ . ___ ..... _______ _ 
700 rods fence (350 rods renewed)------------ ____ -----· ________________ __ 

II. ])oc. 228----2 

$1,400.00 
25.00 
75.00 
50.00 

113.00 
525.00 



18 LANDS IN WIND RIVER R.ESERVA'l'ION. 

35 acres ground broken •..................... _ ......................... . 
1log caldn, 16 by 20 ..... _ ...... _ .... _ .......... _ .. _ ....... _.: ..... ..... . 

From which shouhl be deducted 100 rotls di.tclt included in a.ppraisement 
of 1876 ........ .. _ ..... _ ................. _ ................ - .. - ........ -

$100.00 
50.00 

2,343.00 

50.00 

2,293.00 

Actu:il measuremPnts are here given and proper deductions made for appraisement 
of 1876. 

c. F. NESLER, 
United Slates Indian lnspecto1·. 

SHOSHONE AGENCY, WYO., May 29, 1884. 
WM. EVANS, Esq. 

Sm: By order fl'Om the Department of the Interior, I am instructed to give you I he 
following information, vi7-, that )' OUr improvetnents were appraised at $1,275 by late 
Agent Irwin and forwarded by him to the Departlllent I· ebruary 12, 1876. This 
claim was favorably reported upon by the Department on May 2, 1876. No definite 
action has as yet been tal, en by Congress on t he bill for the nppropriatiou of money 
for the settlement of the claim. Pending such action, however, although having no 
legal claim against the GovernnH nt, by reason of Laving made your improvements 
on unsurveyed lamls, you may be permitted to remain telllporarily, during good 
behavior, with the consent of the Iudinns and the approval of the ag-ent, with the 
understanding, however, that you sha11 make no fnrther hnprovements and hold 
yourself in readiness to move off the reservation as soon as your claim has been 
adjusted by Congress. 

Very respectfully, yours, etc., S. R. MAHTIN, 
United Siates lnd·ian Agent. 

A true copy: 
C. F . NESLER, United Statrs Indian Inspector. 

EXHIBIT B. 

Deposition of Willian~ H. Rogm·s, talcen at Shoshone Agenc.~, Wyo., October 19, 1898, 
1·elative to imp1·ovements made on the Shoshone .Resm·vation, Wyo. 

Q. Give your name and residence.-A. William H. Rogers; residence near Lander, 
Wyo. 

Q. Are you a citizen of the United States~-A. Yes. 
Q. Native born ~-A. No. 
Q. When were you naturalized ~-A. In 1876. 
Q. You are the son of James Rogers, the originallocatod-A. Yes. 
Q. When did James Rog-ers die ~-A. In October, 1889. 
Q. Are you the administrator of his estate~-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Was he a citizen of the United States prior to 1868f-A. Yes. 
Q. Did James Rogers have any Indian rights by marriage or otherwise ~-A. No. 
Q. When did he locate on land a.fterwards a part of this reservation ~-A. In the 

fall of 1867. 
Q. Was he in the employ of the Government at that time or at any time since~­

A. No. 
Q. Can you tell what improvements were made by James Rogers prior to 1868~­

A. No. 
Q. Can you furnish a list of improvements made up to 1876, when they were 

apprn,ised by Agent I r win ~-A . No. 
Q. In your present claim for improvements what periods are embraced ~-A. It 

embraces a period between 1876 and the time of the removal of the heirs of James 
Rogers. 

Q. When were they removed ~-A. In October, 1893. 
Q. Then all improvements made up to 1876 are paid f'or~-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. Where are these improvements located ~-A. About It miles east of the agency. 
Q. To your knowledge did your father, James Rogers, yourself, or any of the 

heirs receive notice from the agent not to make any improvements on the land occu­
pied ~-A. Not to my knowledge. 
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Q. Leb me have a list of the improvements embraced in your claim.-A.-

llog ~:>table, 35 l)y 19, valued at ......................................... . 
1log granary, 19 by 18, valued at ....................................... . 
1 two-l::ltory stone <lwelliug house, 30 by 34 ............................... . 
1 root cellar, 14 by 17 ............... . ................................... . 
2t miles of fence, two wires and two poles ............................... . 
1large ditch, three-fourths mile ...... ..... .............................. . 
1 ditch, three-fourths mile ............. . ................................ . 
3 latera ls, one-fonrth mile each .......................................... . 
Breaking and sowing 30 acres alfalfa . .............. ..... ............. . .. . 
300 pounds timothy seed sown ..... ............................. ... ..... . 
Breaking and cultivating 40 acn·s ground ............................... . 

$500.00 
300.00 

4,000.00 
100.00 

1,555.20 
675.00 
150.00 
75.00 

275.00 
36.00 

200.00 

Total ............ .... ........... .. .... .. ... , .................... _.. 7, 866. 20 

Q. Is that all the improvements you claim ~-A. Yes. 
Q. About what year was the stone house erected ~-A. About 1892. 
Q. vVas James Rogers awaTe of the fact that this was unsurveyed land and that 

he could not get a title to it~-A. He was. 
Q . In view of the fact that .James Hogers or his family enjoyed the u&e and benefit 

of these improveuwnts, <lon't you think that the Government in considering these 
claims is entitled to an offseU-A. No. 

Q. Did James Hogers own any cattle on the reservation '?-A. A small bunch; I 
don't remember bow many. 

Q. Did he pay a grazing tax~-A. Yes. 
Q. Dicl he or his family enjoy any privileges not accorded an ordinary citizen 

while residing on the r(•servation ~-A. No. 
Q. If the improvements you claim were located at or near Lander, what would 

thes be worth to you~- A. A bout the same. 
Q. Did James Hogers or his family live here continuously from the time of his origi­

nal location to the time of his removaU-A. Yes, excepting four or :five months in 
1874, when his partner occupied the premises. 

WILLIAM H. ROGERS. 

Personally appeared before me William H. Rogers, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that he has read the foregoing testimony and that the statements therein 
contained are true. 

WILLIAM H. ROGERS. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., this 19th day of 
October, 1898. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspeoto1-. 

Deposition of James K. Moore, talcen at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., October 31, 1898, relative 
to imp1·ovements m.ade on tl1e Shoshone AgencJ!, Wyo., by James Rogers and his heirs. 

Q. What is your name and residence~-A. James K. Moore; Fort Washakie, Wyo. 
Q. You are an Indian traderf-A. I am. 
Q. When did you first come on the reservation ~-A. I located at Camp Brown 

(now the town of Lander and then a part of the reservation) in 1870, and moved to 
Fort Washakie in 1871. 

Q. Are you acquainted with W. H. Rogers, the administrator of the late .James 
Rogers~-A. I am. 

Q. W. H. Hogers, as administrator, presents a claim for improvements made on 
this reservation by his father, James f{ogers, and his heirs, since .July 3, 1868. Can 
you tell me whether the improvemen ts, as appraised by Agent Irwin, included 
everything up to February 12, 1876~-A. I believe so. 

Q. Can you give me a fair valuation of the improvements made siuce 1876, and t~p 
to the time of the removal of the heirs of James Hogers in October, 1893~-A. About 
$5,000. 

Q. If you were the owner of these improvements, would you consider $5,000 a fair 
adjustment· of this claim ~-A. I would. 

Q. If these improvements were located at or near Lande, rwonld they be worth as 
much as they are here~-A. I think about the same. 

Q. Do you think James Hogers or his heirs have received any benefits or a.dvan­
tages they would not have received elsewhere while they lived on the reservation~­
A. I don't think so. 
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Q. In view of the fact that they have bad the use of these improvements for a 
number of years, don't you think that the Government is entitled to an offset on 
considering this claim ~-A. I don't think so. 

Q. Were Mr. Rogers or any of his heirs employed by the Go vernmenM-A. Not 
sir. 

Q. Did be graze cattle on the reservation during his residence on it ~-A. Yes; he 
did. 

JAMES K. MOORE. 

Personally appeared before me James K. Moore, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that be bas read the foregoing testimony and that the statements therein 
contained are true. 

JAMES K. MOORE, 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day of October, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

c. F. NESLEH, 
United Stcttes Indian Inspectot·. 

Deposition of F . G. But·nett, taken at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Not'ember 4, 1898, 1·elative 
to improvements 1nade on the Shoshone Reservation, Wyo., by Jarnes Rogm·s and his hei1·s 
si.noe the appmisement of Agent 11'win in 1876. 

Q. What is your name, residence, and occupation ~-A. F. G. Burnett, additional 
farmer, Shoshone Agency, yYyo. 

Q. When did you ii.rst come on the reservation ~-A. I came berc first with Agent 
Irwin in May, 1871, and have been employed by the Government or lived in the 
vicinity ever since. 

Q. Are you familiar with the improvementR made by James Rogers and his heirs 
since the appraisement of Agent Irwin in 1876~-A. Yes. 

Q. Is it your understanding that the improvements included in the aforementioned 
appraisement have been paid for ~ -A. It i!:i. 

Q. Can you give me a list of the improvements, and the value of the same, 
made since 1876 and up to the time of the removal of claimants in i893~-A . A two­
story stone dwelling, a root cellar, a corral, some fencing and ditching, but I can not 
say bow much. 

Q. Is that all ~-A. That is all I remember. 
Q. Will you place what you consider a fair value on all improvements made since 

1876 on the Hogers claim ~-A. About $4,000. In this connection I desire to say that 
about four years ago, upon the representation made to me by builders, I made an 
affidavit to the effect that the stone dwelling cost $4,000, but since taking actual 
measurements I consider that that amount would cover all improvements on the 
Rogers place since 1876. 

Q. Then you would consider $4,000 a fair adjustment of Mr. Hogers's claim ~-A. I 
would. 

Q. Do 'you know whether Mr. Rogers or his heirs were ever told by any of the 
agents not to make any further improvements ~-A. I do not know. 

F. G. 'BURNETT. 

Personally appeared }.lefore me F. G. Burnett, who, being duly sworn, deposes and 
says that he has read the foregoing testimony, and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of November, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. , 

c. F. NESJ.ER, 
U,nited States Indian Inspeoto1·. 

App1·aisernent, macle by Inspector Nesl01·, of the irnp1·ovements rnaile on the Shoshone Reser­
vation, Wyo., subsequent to 18'16, and claimed by James Rogers and his heirs. 

1 stone dwelling, 30 by 34 .............................................. . 
1 log stable, 16 by 22 ... __ .. __ ................... _ ........ ____ ... _ ...... . 
1 log and lumber shed, 16 by 24 .. ............. _ .... __ ...... _ .. __ ..... __ .. 
1 log root cellar, 12 by 16 ....... __ ..... _. _ ... __ .... _ ..... ___ ... _ ..... __ .. 
1,122 rods pole fence (640 rods renewed) ......... ·----· ...... ·----- ..... . 
1 pole corral, renewed ... ·--------- ............................ ·----· ___ _ 

$3,200.00 
200.00 
100.00 
100.00 

1,122.00 
50.00 
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566 rods ditch, three-fourths mile main ditch (large) ... .... ···--··· - -- -·· 
70 acres ground broken ........ ____ ......... _. __ ......... __ ........ ____ . 

From which should be deducted-
125 rods ditch, included in appraisement of 1876 ............. _ ..... _ .... _ 
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$566. -oo 
350.00 

5,488.00 

125.00 

5,363.00 

Actual measurements are here given, and proper deductions made for appraisement 
of 1876. 

c. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspector. 

This memorandum, made this the 15th clay of November, A. D. 1893: 
"Witnesseth, that I, WilHam H. Rogers, of the county of Fremont, in the State of 

\Vyoming, do hereby acknowledge that Stefano Gini is the equitable owner of the 
undivided one· half of the right, title, and interest in and to the premises situated 
on Trout Creek, upon the Indian reservation in said county, known as the ranch 
and premises of James Rogers, late of sai0- coun t y, deceased; that said Stefano Gini 
had said right, title, and interest since the said premises and ranch were first occu.,. 
pied and settled upon; and that he and said James Rogers were joint owners of said 
ranch and premises since said settlement thereon and occupation thereof; and I 
h ereby agree, as one of the heirs of said James Rogers, deceased, to turn over to said 
Stefano Gin i and -pa,v him all his share of the avails and proceeds of said property 
which may in any manner come into my bands or under my control. 

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal the day and year :first 
above written. 

In presence of­
CHARLEY ALLEN, 
WILLIAM JONES, 

As witnesses. 

WILLIAM H. ROGERS. [ SEAL.] 

This indenture, made this 11th day of No\·ember, in the year of our Lord one 
thousand eight hnndred and ninety-eight, between Stefano Gini, of the county of 
Fremo11t and State of vVyoming , as the party of the first part, and the estate of 
.James Rogers, deceased, William H. Rogers adminil:'!trator thereof~ as the party of 
the second part: 

Witnesseth, that the said party of the first part, for and in consideration of the 
sum of five (5) dollars, htwful money of the United States of America, and other 
valuable considerations, to him in l1and paid by the said party of the second part, at 
or before the ensealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt whereof is hereby 
confessed and acknowledged, has remised, released, and quitclaimed, and by these 
presents does remise, release, and quitclaim unto th e said party of the second part, 
and to his l1eirs and assigns forever, all the certain property situ a ted in Fremont 
·County, State of Wyoming, and particularly <lescribed a.s follows, to wit: 

An undivided one-ha] f ini.erest in and to all the buildings and improvements of 
whatsoever kind, character, and description now belonging to the said estate of 
.James Rogers, deceased, ahont one and one-half (lt) mi]es easter]y from the Sho­
shono Indian Agency, and all sitnated upon saicl Shoshone Indian Reservation, in said 
Fremont Uonnty, Wyom in g, said property constitnting and comprising the settler's 
claim of said .Tames Rogers, deceased, for improvements made b~ said James Rogers, 
deceased, and his heirs thereon, after the appraisement of li:!76, and for which appli­
cation for payment is now penuing in the Department of the Interior, Washington, 
D. C., for the sum of $7,716.20, as the "claim of James Hogers, deceased, \Villiam H. 
Rogers, administrator." 

Together with aH and singular the tenements, hereditaments, ancl appurtenances 
thereunto belonging, or in any wise appertaining, and the reversion and reversions, 
remainder and remainders, rents, issues, and profits thereof; and also ail the estate, 
right, title, interest, property; possessions, claim, and demand whatsoever, as well 
in law. as in errnity, of the said party of the :first part, of, i!l, or to the above­
described premises, and every part and parcel thereof, with the appurtenances. To 
have and to bold all and singular the above mentioned and described premises, 
together with the appurtenances, unto the said. party of the second part, and his 
heirs and assigns fo1·ever. 

In witness whereof the said party of the :first part bas hereunto set his hand and 
seal the day and year first above written. 

[SEAL.] STEFANO GIN!. 
Signed, sealed, and delivered in presence of-

ERVIN P. CHENEY, County Treasurer, 
JAMES 'r. VIDAL, Cotmty Attorney, 

Witnesses. 
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STATE OF WYOMING, County of Ft·emont, ss: 
I, ,John Gillis, county clerk and clerk of the district court in and for the county of 

Fremont, in the State of Wyoming, do hereby certify that Stefano Gini, personally 
known to me as the person whose name is subscribed. to the for·egoing instrument, 
appeared before me this day in person and acknowledged said instrument and the 
execution thereof as his free and voluntary a.cfi and cleecl. 

My commission expires on the first Monday of January, A. D. 1899. 
Given under my hand aud offi cial seal this 11th day of November, A. D.1898. 
[SEAL.] JOHN GILLIS, 

County Cle1'7c and ex officio Clerlc of the Dist·l'ict Cou1·t. 

Mr . .JAMES RoGEHS. 
SuosnoNE AGENCY, WYo. , May 29, 1884. 

SIR: By Ol'der from the Department of Intel'ior I am instructed to give you the 
following information, vi z : 

That ~- our improvements were appntised at $2,554 by late Agent Irwin and for­
warded b y him to the Department .F'eb1·uary 12, 1876; this claim was favorably 
reported upon by the Department on Ma,y 2, 1876 ; no definite action h<:ts as yet been 
taken by Congress on the bill for appropriation of money for t h e settlemeut of the 
clftiru. 

Pending such action, however, although having 11.1 legal cl aim ag ain Rt the Govern­
ment by r eason of havi11g maclo your improvo meuts on unsurveyed lands, you may 
be p ermitted to r em::Lin temporarily tlnring good behavior, with the consent of the 
Indians and the approval of the agent , with the unclertltandiug, h o wever, that you 
shall make no other improvenJents and hold yourself iu reauiness to move off the 
reservation as soon as your claim l;tas been adjusted by Congress. 

Very respectfully, yours, etc., 

A true copy: 

s. R. MARTIN, 
United States Indian Agent. 

C. F. NESLER, United States Indicm Insp ector. 

UNITED STATl<~S INDIAN SERVICE, 
Shoshone Ayency, Wyo., .dugust 31-, 1893. 

WILLIAM ROGERS, Esq., 
Shoshone Indian Resen·ation, Wyo. 

SIR: By order of the honorahle Secretary of the In teeior yon :tre ordereu to re:nove· 
from the Shoshone Indian Resorvatim1 yourself and fawily, together with all your 
persona.! efferts, o n or before the 31st day of October, lts93. 

You are cautioned not to deface, destroy, or remove any permanent improvements, . 
such as buildings, fences, etc. 

Very respectfully, yours, P . H . RAY, 
Captain Eighth Infantry, .dcting UnUed States Inclian Agent. 

A true copy: 
C. F. NESLER, United States Ind·ian Inspector . 

EXHIBIT C . 

.Deposition of William Jones, taken at Shoshone ArJency, Wyo., October 19, 1898, 1·elative 
tu imp1·ovements macle on the Shoshone Rese1·vation, Wyo. 

Q. Give your name ancl resiclence.-A. William Jones, La.nller, Wyo. 
Q. Are you a citizen of the United States f-A . . Yes; and was at the time I made 

this claim. 
Q. Are yon native-born or naturalized f-A. Naturalized. 
Q. When were you naturalized ~-A . In 1869, although I declared my intention in-

1864. 
Q. Have you Indian rights by marriage or otherwise~-A. No. 
Q. When did yon first locate on this reservation ~-A. In the fall of 1867. 
Q. Did you locate here permanently in 1S67 ~-A. Not where the improvements are 

located, but on land sub.sequently embraced. in the reservation. 
Q. When did you locate on the site occupied by the improvements claimed by 

you f-A. In 1873. 
Q. Prior to 1873 did yon make any improvements on the reservation f-A. Only t(}· 

haul logs in the spring of 1868 for my improvements. 
Q. Were these logs used in your improvements '-A. No; I was obliged to abandon 

them on account of Indian troubles. 
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Q. Then you had no improvements prior to 1873 ~-A. No. 
Q. You make a claim for improvements made prior to 1868; how did you come into 

possession of these improvements ~-A. I purchased them in 1873 of Thomas Cosgrove. 
Q. Who ma1le these improvementt:l ~-A. Robert Espey and Tip Trimble. 
Q. Were they made prior to July 3, 1868 ~-A . They were, to tile best of my knowl­

edge :mel belief. 
Q. Yon say t.hat you purchased the improvements of Thomas Cosgrove; how did 

he obtain possession of them ~-A . By purchase from Espey and Trimble, wilo were 
the original locators. 

Q. Did Cosgrove own other improvements at the time~-A . Yes; he cultivated a 
tract of land on the creek about a mile west of the agency. 

Q. Where are th e improvements you claim located '?-A. About a quarter of a mile 
east of the agency. 

Q. vVhat did you pay Thomas Cosgrove for these improvements~-A . Three hun­
dred dollars. 

Q. Why was this claim not Fmb rnittecl in Cosgrove's name instead of yours ~-A. 
Becanse at the time of the appraisement I was ow11er of the improvements. 

Q. Did the appraisement ol this claim ma.de by Agent Irwin include the value of 
all improvement:,; mnde prior to 1876~-A. Yes. 

Q. Do you recollect what improvements were on the place when your cla~m was 
appraised by Agent Irwin in 1876 ~-A . Yes. 

A log cabi n, about 14 by 16, valued at about .............. ____ . ..... .... __ . 
A sher1 kitchen, va1ned at about .... ____________ .......................... . 
A stable, valnecl at abont ................ ____ ------ .---· ........ .. ........ . 
Outhouses, valued at abont ........ ... ·----- .... ____ ..... . ------ -----· .... . 
A chicl,eu house, val ned at about . _ ... _ ..................... __ . __ .... __ .. . 
One-half milt> fence, value(l at abont .............. _ ... _ ....... _ .. .... _. _ .. 
Ditches ancllaterals, v8Jued at about .................................... .. 
15 acres l::tnd broken, valued at about ....................... -- .......... .. 

Q. Was there anything clse~-A . Nothing else that I know of. 
Q. When were yon removed from the reservation f-A. In October, 1893. 
Q. What improvements were made between February 12. 1876, and Octo-

ber 31 1893, to the best of yonr recollcetion ~-A. One dwelling house, 

$1GO.OO 
40.00 
50.00 
10.00 
25.00 
40.00 
75.00 
90.00 

480.00 

valued at ...... ------ .................................................... $2,000.00 
Q. When did you erect this house~-A. It was erected in parts at three 

different times; the first or log part was bn ilt in 1~79; the west addition was 
built in 188:d, an<l the rear portion in 1883 or 1884. 

One log b:un, erectecl in 1891, valued at .......... __ ... _ ............ _ ..... _ 
One shed and outhouse. erected in 18!Jl, valued at ......... : .. _ .. _ ...... .. 
Repairs on fence previously erected __ . __ .... ____ .... __ .... ___ ... ...... .. 
One gran;l,ry .... ---- ----- .. -.- .. ---- -- ·- ·- ---- - ·- · ·- ·- ---- ·- ·- ---- · · · · · · · 
One ice house .. __ .. ____ ... _ ... _ .. _. ______ .. _ .... ____ .. ____ . _ .. __ . . __ . . _ .. 
One root cellar, 15 by 20 ...... ------ ...... ____ .............. _________ .. .. 
Loss on 20 tons of hay, ~Lt $4.50 per ton .... _____ ......... __ . __ .......... .. 

550.00 
150.00 
20.00 

100.00 
100.00 

50.00 
90.00 

3,060.00 

Q. Did you ever receive notice from the agent or proper authority not to put any 
improvements on your claim ~-A. None until the corning of Captain Wygant, in 
1893. 

Q. Did you ever r eceive a letter, dated May 29, 1884, wherein you were given per­
mission to remain temporarily on the reservation, with the consent of the Indians 
and the agent, and warnPd not to make any improvements, and that your occupa­
tion was by suffl'rance onl,y ~-A. I 1lo not 1 ecollect receiving any snch notice. 

Q. In view of the fact that you located on unsurveyed land nnd could obtain no 
legal title to the same, don't you consider t)1at you h ave received the full value by 
the use of the improvements you had made up to the time you removed from the 
reservation ~-A. I do not. 

Q. Then you do not consider the use of these improvements to have been of any 
value to you during your residence here as an offset to the claims above mentioned~­
A. I do not. 

Q. If these improvements were located at or near Lander, what would they be 
worth to you ~-A. They would be worth as much or more t~an they were on this 
reservation. 

Q. Were you employed at any time by the Government during your residence on 
the reservation ~-A. Yes, sir. 
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Q. For how long~-A. About three or four months, freighting. 
Q. Do you remember in what year that was ~-A. Some time in the eighties. 

WILLIAM JONES. 

Personally appeared before me William Jones, who, being duly sworn, deposes and 
says that he h as read the foregoing testimony and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

\VILLIAM JONES. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day of October, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. Ji'. NESI.ER, 
Dnitecl States Indian Inspector. 

Deposition of James K. Moore, taken at Shoshone Agency, W.'IJo., October 81, 1898, 1·elatioe 
to impt·oveu~ents made on the Shoshone Beservat.ion, Wyo., by William Jones. 

Q. What is your name and residence~--A . .James K. Moore, Fort ·washakie, Wyo. 
Q. You are an Indian tmder ~--A. Yes, sir. 
Q. When did you first come on the reser':ation ~-A. I located at Camp Brown 

(now the town of Lantler and then a part of the reservation) in 1870, and moved to 
Fort Washakie in 1871. 

Q. Are you familiar with the improvements made by certain citizens of the United 
States on this reservation subsequent to July 3, 1868~--A. I am. 

Q. Do you know when Mr. Jones first came on the reservation ~-A . I do not. 
Q. Mr. ,Jones presents a claim for improvements mnde prior to .Jnly 3, 1868. Are 

you familiar with any of these improvements~-A. Not prior to 1868. 
Q. Do you know whether the appraisement made by Agent Irwin in regard to this 

claim covered all the improvements made up to February, 1876~-A. My impression 
is that it did. 

Q. Have you any idea what the amount was~-A. No. 
Q. In your opinion were the figures agreed upon in 1876 fair and justf-A. My 

impression is that they were satisfactory to all parties. 
Q. Have yon auy idea of the value of the improvements made by Mr . .Jones 

between 1876 and the time he was removed f-A. I tllink about $2,000 would be a 
fair valuation. 

Q. Do you kuow whether Mr . .Jones was ever warned not to make any improve­
ments on that place~-A. I clo not. 

Q. If these impr ovement's had been your owll and the conllitions the same, do you 
think that you would have received a fair adjnstment upon the payment of $2,00M­
A. Yes; I think I would. 

Q. If these same improvements were located at or near Lander, would they be 
worth as much as they are here ~-A. I think about the same. 

Q. Do you think Mr . .Jones has received a.ny benefits and advantages he wonld 
not have received elsewhere while he lived 011 the reservation ~-A . I do not think 
be did. 

Q. In view of the fact that be bas hatl the 11se of these improvements for a num­
ber of years, don't you think that the Government is entitled to au offset in consid­
ering this claim ~-A. I hardly think so. 

Q. Was Mr. Jones employed by the Government during this time~-A. He was 
contract butcher at the post for ttbout three years. 

Q. During the time he was a butcher did h e graze his cattle on the reservation~­
A. Yes. 

.JAMES K. MooRE. 

Personally appeared before me .James K. Moore, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that he has read the foregoing testimony and that the statements therein 
contained are trne. 

.JAMES K. MOORE. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this Slst day of October, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspector. 

Deposition of F. G. Bu1·nett, talce11 at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Novembe1· 4, 1898, relative 
to imp1·ovements made on the Shoshone .Rese?''l)ation, Wyo., by William Jones. 

Q. State your name and residence~-A. F. G. Burnett, Shoshone Agency, Wyo. 
Q. What is your occupation ~-A. Additional farmer. 
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Q. When d id you :first come on the reservation ~-A . I came here with Dr. Irwin 
in May, 1871, and ha.ve been in the employ of the Government or lived in this vicin­
ity ever since. 

Q. Are you fam iliar with the improvements made by certain citizens of the United 
St::Ltes since July 3, 1868~-A . Yes. 

Q. I would like to have you tell me what you can in regard to a claim for improve­
ments made on the reservation and presented by William .Jones, the same h aving 
been made prior to and subsequent to 1868 and up to the time of his r emovaL-A. 
This claim was originally located by Robert Espey, who erected a double log house, 
a cellar, and about the same amount of fence and ditch as is there to-day. In about 
1872 or 1873 he sold these improvements to Thomas Cosgrove. Cosgrove held the 
same a short time and without making any improvements sold them to William Jones 
in 1873. 

Q. Do you know whether there were any improvements added by Jones between 
the time he bought the improvements and the time they were appraised by Agent 
Irwin i11 1876~-A . I don't remember. 

Q. Ca.n yon mention the improvements made between 1876 and the t ime of Mr . 
. Jones's removnl in 1893~-A. A dwellil1g, a barn, ice house, coal house, granary, shed, 
chicken house, cellar, and corral. 

Q. Is that all ~-A. That is all I can remember. 
Q. You wm1 t around with me an d saw these improvements. Now I would like to 

have you state what you consider a fair value for all the improvements made on the 
Jones place.-A. About $2,500. 

Q. You would cons ider that a fair adjustment of Mr. Jones's claim ~-A. Yes, sir. 
Q . Do yon know whether Jones was ever warned not to make any improvements 

on his p lace at any time ~-A . I do not. • 
Q. Mr. Jones h aving had the use of these improvements for a numuer of year s, 

don't yon think that the Governmellt in considering this claim is entitl ed to an oil'­
set ~-A . I should think so; but at the same time if Mr. Jones and the other settlers 
h ad beon removefl at the time of the appraisement in 1876 they could have located 
on pnblic la11d uear Lander, which was then subject to entry, but which had all been 
:filed on by the time they were removed. 

Q. If these improvements were located at or n ear Lander what would they be 
worth ~-A. About the same. 

Q. Do yon consider that Mr. Jones enjoyed any benefits and privileges whil e liv­
ing on t h e reservation that he would not have ha,d elsewhere~-A. I don 't think so. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Personally appeared before me F. G. Burnett, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that he has read t he foregoing testimony and that the statements therein 
contained are tl'ue. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Suuscri becl and sworn to before me this 4th da.y of November, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

c. F. NESLER, 
Unitecl States Indian lnspect01·. 

A.ppmisement made by ln8pecto1· Nesler of tlle irnpro?,ements made on the Shoshone Rese?·­
vation, Wyo., by Will'ian~ Jones. 

1 frame dwelling, 16 by 41, and L 16 by 24 .. ...... .. _ - . .. .. _ .. - ...... _ .. . 
1log outhouse, 15 uy 18.--- .. . ----- .--- .- . ---- .. ---- . .. - u- •. ---------- - -
1 frame sh ecl, 16 by 26 .. __ .... . ___ ..... . . _ .... . __ --. -.......... -... - .- .. . 
1log stable, 16 by 30 ... _ ................ -.. - ..... - - ...... ---- .. --.- .... . 
llog ice h ouse, 12 by 16 * ........ _ ..... . ... ... .. .. ... -.. -...... - - -- .... . 
1 root cellar ··" . _ ... ____ ........ _ .. . .. . ......... . . -- _ .... - .. - ... ·.- .... - .. . 
156 rods pole fence . .. ..... . . _ ............ _ ............... _ . . .. ___ . .. ___ . 
1log chicken house, 13 by 13 .. _ . .............. ___ ..... -- ..... -.- ..... - .. 
1 log coal honse, 12 by 16 " .... _ ........ _ ...... _. _ .... ____ . _ .......... _ .. 
204 rods ditch._ ..... __ .... __ .... _ .... __ ... . . .. .. ___ ......... -- - ... ----. -
1 well ··• ....... _ ........ __ .... _ . _ ...... _ ....... . .. _ .. . . _ ......... . ...... . 
20 acres land broken ......... ___ ................. ____ ... _ .... -.- .... ---. 

$1,700.00 
75.00 
35.00 

350.00 
40.00 
50.00 

273.00 
75.00 
50.00 

102.00 
25.00 

100.00 

2,875.00 

Actual measurements are here given. Items marked ··" are no longer in existence. 
C. F. NESLER, 

United States Indian Inspecto1·. 
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SHOSHONE AGENCY, WYO., May 29, 1884. 
Mr. WILLIAM JoNES. 

SIR: By orcler from the Department of Interior I am instructell to give yon the 
following information, viz: Yonr improvements were appraised a~ $500 by late 
Agent Irwin, and forwarded to the Department February 12, 1~76. On May 12, 1880, 
"the claim of Wm . • Iones was <lisapproved by this olfice, on the groun<l tbat bis 
settlements an<l imp1·ovements appear to have been ma.rle snhseguent to tbe ratifica­
tion of the treaty, July 3, 1868. This man, for reason yon have stated, and consider­
ing his occupation, thongh having no legal claim on the Government, may be per­
mitted to remain temporarily, with the Indians' consent and your approval. He 
should, how eyer, be required to compensa,te the Indians for the privilege of gr·azing, 
and be cantionecl against making further improvements. Let him understand that 
he is on the r eservation by suffera.nce." 

Very respectfully, S. R. MAHTIN, 
United mates lncl'ian .dgent. 

A true copy: 
C. F . NESLER, United, States Indian Inspecto1·. 

WILLJA;\1. JoNES, Esq., 
Shoshone Inclian Resercation, Wyo . 

UNITED STATES INDIAN SERVICE, 
Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Attgttst 81, 1893. 

SIR: By ortler of the honorable Secretary of the Interior you are ordered to remove 
from the Shoshoue Indian Reservation yourself and family, together with all your 
personal ctfects, on or before the 'S1st day of October, 1893. 

You are cautioned not to deface, destroy, or remove any peTmauent improvements, 
such as bnildingR, fences, etc. 

Very respectfully, P. H. RAY, 
Captain, Eighth Infantry, Acting United States Inclian Agent . 

A true copy: 
C. F. NESLlm, United States Indian Inspector. 

EXHIBIT D. 

)epositi.on of Nelson Ycwnall, taken at S hoshone Agency, Wyo., Octobe1·19, 1898, 1·elative 
to improvements rnacle on the Shoshone Resm·va.tion, Wyo. 

Q. Give yonr name and residence.- A. NelFJon Yarnall; residence, Dubois, Vilyo. 
Q. Are ,v ou a citizen of the United States ?-A. Yes; I am a nat ive-hom citizen. 
Q. Yon have no Indi an rights, by marriage or otherwise~-A. No, sir. 
Q. When did yon first locate on this reservation ~-A. I came here in 1870, and was 

subseqnently employed as guide and interpreter by the Govemment at Fort Washakie. 
Q. Then you arf'> not an originallocatod-A. No, sir. 
Q. When and how did you es tablish your residence h ere ~-A. In 1881 I purchased 

for $2,000 the improvements now referred to as the claim of ·w illiam Boyd, and 
owned at that time by Charles H. Oldham, to wh om William Boyd had previously 
sold and relinquished all his r ight, tit le, and interest to any and all such improvements 

Q. Have you a bill of sale for the improvements purchased ~-A . Yes, sir. [Bill or 
sale produced.] 

Q. Have you a good recollection of all improvements existing a t the time of y our 
pnrchase~-A. Yes, sir. 

Q. Tho bill of sale not showing the nature of the improvements transferred, I would 
like to have you enumerate the improvements existing at the time of your purchase, 
placin g what you consider a fair valuation on each.-A.-

A log house, about 14 by 16, valued at ............ . ....... ------------ ... . 
A stable, about 16 by 18, valued at ............... _ ... .. ... . .... . ........ . 
A root cellar, about 12 by 14, valued at .................. ·----· ...... .. .. . 
20 acres land broken ............................. -. _. _ ..... _ ............ . 
120 f qds fencing .................... ···--· ......... .... ................. . . 
An adobe dwelling, 14 by 14, adjoining log house ......................... . 
320 rods eli tch. - - . - ... - - . - - . . . - . - - - ... - - - .. -....... -... - . - ... - ... - - . - .. - . -

$125.00 
50.00 
25.00 

100.00 
1!)0. 00 
250.00 
320.00 

'l'otal .. ____ ..... . ............... _.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1, 020. 00 

Q. Do you know whether any of the improvements William Boyd was paid for, and 
included in the a,ppraisement of Agent Irwin, were in existence when you made the 
purchase ~-A. I do not. 
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Q. Where are the improvements you claim located ~-A. One-fourth of a mi.le 
northeast of the agency. 

Q. Were you removed from the reservation ~-A. I was notified to remove in sixty 
days, and did so in October, 1893. 

Q. Mention the improvements made by you between 1881, the time of purchase, 
and the date of your removal, in 1893.-A.-

A barn, log, to accommodate 5 animals, valued at ..... _ . •......... _ .... ___ . 
New roof on honse and replastering inside and out ... _ ........... _ .... __ .. 
1 adobe chicken house. valued at ..................... ··---···-------· ... . 
About 2 ~ miles l>arb-";ire fence ...... ____ ·---··-----· ....... ____ ......... . 
Breaking and cnltiva.ting 40 acres ground .... ________ ..... ·---- - .... ··---· 
Breaking and cultivating 15 acres ground __ ._ . _____ . ___ ... __ .. ____ ... ___ . 
400 rods eli tch _ ...... ____ .. ____________ .. ______ . _____ . __ . . ______ __ ____ .. __ 
50 tons bay seized by the acting Indian agent .. _ ............ _ ... _ ... _____ . 

$200.00 
50.00 
40.00 

640.00 
200.00 
7G.OO 
40.00 

500.00 

Tot<tl ... _ ............ .. .......... __ ... _ ....... _. __ . _ .... __ ....... __ 1, 745. 00 

Q. Did you ever receive written notice from · the agent or proper authority not to 
make any additional improvements on y onr claim ~--A. Ko, Rir. 

Q. In view of the fact that you have enjoyed the use of these improvements from 
1881 to J893, don't yon think the Governmell t, in considering this claim is entitled to 
on offset,-A. No; I don't. 

Q. Did yon own any cattle on the reservation ~ ·-A. Yes; a small bunch. 
Q. Did you pay a gr azing tnx ~-A. Yes; I did. 
Q. Did you enjoy any privileges not accorded an ordinary citizen while residing 

on the reservation '-A. No. 
NEI.SON YA Rl'\ ALL. 

Personally appeared before me Nelson Yarnall, who, being duly sworu, deposes an d 
says that he has 1·ead t he foregoing testimony and that the statements therein made 
are true . 

Subscribed alld sworn to before me at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., this 19th clay of 
October, 1898. 

c. F. NERLER, 
United States Indian Inspe.cloT. 

Deposition of Willia.rn Jones r·elatke to the claim of Nelson Ya1·nall. 

Q. Are you thorou ghly famili ar with the improvements embrnced in the Yarnall 
claim, refe:rred to as the William Boyd claim ~-A. Yes. 

Q. Can you recollect what improvements were made on the claim referred to as 
the William Boy'l claim between 1868 and 1881, when they were purchased b y Mr .. 
Yarnall '-A. I think so. 

Q. Please do so .-A.-

The log ca.bin built by Boyd, valne<l at .. . ................. : ......... ·-----
80 rods fencing bnilt by Boyd, valned at ...... ·----· ..... . ·----· ...... ---·· 
40 rods fencing built by C. H. 0lf1bam, val ned at .. ____ -·_ .... ____ . ____ ---· 
20 acres l and broken by C. H. Oldham, valued at ...................... ___ _ 
1 root cellar built by C. H . OlJham, valued nt ......... . ----·- ·----- _ --·--· 
1 stable built l>y C. H. Oldham, valued at. __ .... __ .. _. _ .. _ .. _. _. ____ .. ____ _ 

$125. 00· 
100.00 
50.00· 

100.00 
25.00 
50. 00• 

There were also two ditches, but I do not know who built them, bow long ihey 
were, or what tbt·y were worth. 

Q. Is that all you recollect ,-A. Yes. 
Q. Were William Boyd or C. H. Oldham in the employ of the Government at the· 

time these improvements were ma.de ~-A. Mr. Oldham was, but Mr. Boyd was not. 
WILLIA;.\-1 JONES. 

Personally appeared before me William Jones, who, being duly sworn, deposes an<i 
says that he has read the foregoing t estimony, and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

WILLIAM JONES. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me, at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., this 19th day of 
October, 1898. 

c. F. NESLER, 
Unitecl States Ind·ian Inspector. 
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Deposition of Jarnes K . Moore, taken at S hoshone Agency, Wyo., October 31, 1898 , 1'ela-
tive to irnprovernents nwcle on the Shoshone Resm·vation, Wyo ., by Nelson Ya1·nall . 

Q. W hat is your name and residenceO?-A. James K. Moore, Fort Washakie, Wyo. 
Q. You are an Indian traded-A. Yes, sir. 
Q. WbC\n did you first come on the reservation~- A. I located at Camp Brown 

(now the town of Lander, and then part of t he reservation) in 1870, and moved to 
Fort Washakie in 1871. 

Q. Are you acquainted with Nelson Yarnall ~-A . I am. 
Q. Do yon know wh en be located on the r eservation ~-A. Not exactly . 
Q. Mr. Yarnall purchased t he improvements made by William Boyd and presents 

a claim for same against the Government. Do you know the nature or value of these 
improvements ~-A. I know very little in regard to t hi s claim. 

JAMES K. MOORE. 

Personally appeared before me James K. Moore, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that he bas read t.be foregoing testimony ancl that the statements therein 
contained are true. 

JAMES K. MOORE. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day of October, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United Sta tes Indian Inspector. 

Deposition of William Boyd, taken at Shoshone .dgency, 'WIJo., No·cmnber 3, 18.98, 1·elative 
to improve1nents n~ade on the Shoshoue Agency, Wyo .; by Ne lson Yanwll. 

Q. What is your name and residence~-A . v.rilliam Boyd, Shoshone Reservation, 
Wyo. 

Q. Mr. Yarnall presents a claim for improvements made on this r eservation on the 
place heretofore referred to as the Boyd claim. Yo n were paid by t h e Governmenii" 
for the improvements made on this place prior to 1876 as appraised by Agent Irwin~­
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. What was the amount paid ~ ·-A. $1,392.50. 
Q . Did that include the adjustment of your claim up to Febrnary, 1876, when it 

was a.ppraised by Agent Irwin ~-A. · I do not r e!Heml>er who made the appraisement, 
but I know it included eYerything up to t hat time. 

Q. Do you know when these improvements were sold to Oldham 0?-A. I do not 
remember. 

Q. Do yo tl know what improvements were made by Oldham while he occupied the 
place ~-A. No; I am not familiar witll them. 

Q. Can you give me a list of the improvements that were on the place when the 
appraisement was made in 1876 f-A. A stone bonse, root cell ar, log s table, Jog house, 
60 acres broken ground, about 320 rods more or less of ditch and laterals, about 350 
rods more or less of fencing, chicken bo11se, a corral. and a well. 

Q. Is that all yon can recollect ~-A. I tllink that is a,bout all. 
Q. How much did you. sell these improYetn ents for to Oldham ~-A. I sold for 13 

head of cows, then ranging in va.lne fr.,rn $12 to $20 each-$156 to $260. 
Q. Do you know if Oldham made a11y improvements while he lived on the place ~-

A. I could not say. · 
Q. During the time you were in possession of these improvemen t·s did you receive 

notice not to add to them ~-A. I did, either from tlle agent or employees. 
Q. Were the others also told not to make any further improvements ~-A. I nncler­

stood it was a general order and applied to all. 
Q. At that time bad you Indian rights hy marriage ~-A. I did have. 
Q. W ere you a citizen of the United States at that time~-A. I was. 

WILLIAM BOYD. 

Personally appeared before me \Villi am Boyd, who, being dnly sworn, deposes and 
says that he bas read the foregoing testimony -and that the statements therein eon­
tained are true. 

WILLIAM BOYD. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., this 3d day of 
November, 1898. 

c. P. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspector. 
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Deposition of F. G. Bunwtt, taken at Shoshone Agency, W,yo., November 4, 1898, relative 
to imp1·overnents made on the Shoshone Beservation, Wyo., by Nel8on Yarnall. 

Q. ·what is your name, re~:~idence, and occupation ~-A. F. G. Burnett, additional 
farmer, Shoshone Agency, Wyo. 

Q. When did yon first come on the Teservation ~-A. I :tirst came here in 1871 with 
Agent Irwin, and have been employed by the Government oT lived in the viduity 
.ever since. 

Q. Are you acquainted with Nelson Yarnall, who purehased from Chas. H. Oldham 
the claim r eferred to as the Boyd claim and originally located by Doty~-A. Yes, 
I am. 

Q. Do you know who was the owner of the improvements on that claim July 3, 
1868 ~-A. Doty was. 

Q. Do you remember what impTovements Doty made after 1868~-A. Not any. 
Q.. Who did Doty sell his improvements to and when ?-A. To William Boyd in 

1869. 
Q. Did Boyd make any improvements on the claim ?- A. Yes ; he built a stone 

house 16 by 20. There were some other improvements, but I do not recollect what 
they were or who made tQ.em. 

Q. Who did Boyd sen the improvements to and when ~-A. He sold to Charles. H. 
Oldham in 1877, as near as I can recollect. 

Q. Who owned the improvements when the appraisement was made in 1876 ?-A. 
William Boyd. · 

Q. Did the appraisen;eut made by Agent Irwin cover the value of all improve­
ments made up to 1876 ~-A. Jt, did. 

Q. To whom did Oldham sell these improvements and when ~-A . To Nelson Yar­
nall in 1881. 

Q. Can you state what improvements were made on this claim since the appraise- • 
ment in 1876 and up to the time of Yarnall's r emoval in October, 1893, and place a 
fair valuation on same~-A. One log addition to stone house, a stable, outhouse, 
chicken house, shed addition to dwelling, two corra.ls, and some additional fencing 
and ditching. I shoulcl think about $1,200. 

Q. Would you consider that sum a fair adjustment of Yarnall's claim ?-A. I would. 
Q. Do you consider that during his residen ce on the reservation Mr. Yarnall 

enjoyed benefits and advantages he would not haYe received elsewhere ~-A. I do 
not. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Personally appeared before me F. G. Burnett, who, being duly sworn, deposes and 
says that he has read the foregoing testimony and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of November, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, ·wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspectm·. 

Appraisement rnacle by Inspecto1· Nesler of the intprovements made on the Shoshone Reser­
vat·ion, Wyo., subsequent to 1876 and claimed by Nelson Yarnall. 

1log stable, 19 by 25 .................................................... . 
1 frame outhouse, 6 by 6 ............................................ ·----· 
1 adobe chicken house, 12 by 19 ........... _ ................... _ ........ _. 
3 corrals, pole ........................................... _ ............... . 
720 rods fence, wire (350 rods renewed) ................................ _ .. 
4 79 rods ditch ................... _ ........... _. _ ........................ __ 
55 acres land broken ..................................................... . 

From which should be deducted: 
100 rods ditch. . .. .. . .. .. .. .. . . .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. .. . .. .. . .. .. .. . .. .. . $50. 00 
1 corral ..........................•. _.. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 25. 00 

(Included in appraisement of 1876.) 

$200.00 
25.00 
50.00 

100.00 
540.00 
240.00 
275.00 

1,430.00 

75.00 

1,355.00 

Actual measurements are here given and proper deductions made for appraisement 
of 1876. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspeoto1·. 
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UNITED STATES INDIAN SmRVICE, 
S hoshon e .AgP.ncy, Wyo ., August 31, 1893. 

NELSON YARNALL, Esq., 
Shoshone indian Rese·rvation, Wyo. 

SIR: By order of the honorable Secretary of the Interior you are ordered to 
remove from the ~hoshone Indian ResP.rvation yourself and fanlily, together with 
~ll your personal effects, on or before tlw 31st day of October, 1893. 

Yon are cautioned not to deface, destroy, or remove any permanent improvements, 
such as buildings, fences, etc . 

P . H. RAY, 
Captain, 'Eighth Infantry, Acting United States Indian Agent. 

A true copy: 
C. F. NESLEI{, United States lnclian Insp~cfo1' . 

EXHIBIT E. 

Deposition of Stefano Gini, talcen at Shoshone Agency, W,yo., October 19, 1898, 1·elative 
to claim fo1' i-mp1'ovements made on the Shoshone Resm·vation, Wyo. 

Q. Give your name and residence.-A. Stefano Gini; residence near La.nder, Wyo. 
Q. Are yon a citizen of the United States~-A. Yes. 
Q. Were you a citizen when you located on this resenration ~-A. Not a full citizen; 

I took out my papers some time after. 
Q. When did yo n first come on the r eservation ~-A. In the fall of 1867; and have 

lived here continuously until I was removed in the spring of 1894, up to which time 
I remained by consent of the agent. 

Q. tfave you ever :filed a claim for improvements made on this reservation prior to 
July 3, 1868~-A. 1\o, ~Sir. 

Q. Did you have improvements prior to that date ~-A. Yes. 
Q. Were you e'ver paid for the improvements made prior to July 3, 1868 f-A. Yes, 

sir. They were em bodied in the improvements of James Rogers, who was then my 
partner in said improvements, and for which full settlement has peen made. I dis­
solved partnership with' .Ja.mes Rogers in 1876 and built my improvements on another 
portion of the same tract of laud ori ginally settled on by James Rogers and myself 
and which Raid improvements were not partnership property. 

Q. Did yo u make any intprovements between 1876 and the date you left the reser­
vation, ¥arch, 189H-A. Yes . 

A log bouse, 15 by 18, valued at·---·----· ................ __ ........... ____ $150.00 
A log stable, 16 by 30, valued at .................................. _ . .. ___ .. 200. 00 
A root cellar, 14 by 16, valued at ..................... ___ .......... '- -...... 50.00 
2 corrals ...... ___ . _. __ ... ____ .. _ . _ ... ___ . ____ . ___ ........ _. _ .. _. _. . . . . . . . . 25. 00 

Total .. _ .... --- . --- . ___ .. __ ....... -.- - ... -- ...............•...... __ . 425. 00 

Q. Is that alH-A. Yes; tha.t is all. 
Q . Were you ever . o1·dered not to make any improvements ~-A. Not until I was 

ordered away. 
Q. Did you understand that the l and was unsurveyed at the time you located, and 

that yon could not get title to it ~-A. Yes. 
Q. Do you think the above is a. fair and just valuation of the improvements f-A. 

Yes. 
Q. If these improvements were located at or near Lander, what would they be 

worth to you f- A. About the same. 
Q . Don't yon think, in view of the fact that you have had the use and benefit of 

these improvements since 1876, that there should be some offset to your claim f-A. 
Yes; I do. 

Q. In considering your claim, what offset would you be willing to make for the use 
and benefit of these improvements ~-A. About one-fourth of the value as here stated. 

Q. Were you entitled to any rights on this reservation by marriage or otherwise~­
A. No, sir. 

STE:FANO GINI. 

P ersonally appeared before me Stefano Gini, who, being duly sworn, depo.ses and 
says that he has read the foregoing tes1iimony, and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

STKI!'ANO GINI. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me at Shoshone Agency, Wyo., this 19th day of 
October, 1898. 

c. 1''· NESLER, 
United States Indian Inspectm·. 
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Deposition of .James K. Moo1·e, taken at Slto8hone .Agency, Wyo., Octohe1· 31, 1898, 1'ela-
tive to imp1·ovnnents macle on the Sho8hone Rese1·vation, Wyo., by Stefano Girli. 

Q. Wha.t is yonrname all(l resitlence~-A . .James K. Moore; Fort Washakie, Wyo. 
Q. Yon are an Inclian traded--A. Yes, sir. 
Q. When did you first come on the reservation ~-A. I located at C;~mp Brown 

(now the town of Lander, and t.hen part of the reservation) in 1870, anclruovecl to 
Fort Washakie in 1871. 

Q. Are yon ac<Jnainted with Stefano Oiu i ~-A . Yes sir. 
Q. He claims to have located on the resenation prior to 1868, and presents a 

claim for improvements; do yon know anythiug about it f-A. He was hero in 1870 
when I came, and I have no donl,t he was here in 1868. 

Q. Dicl he ma];:e ally iruprovemonts~-A. Yes. 
Q. Do yon know what intproYements he has made since 1876, and ('an yon approxi­

mate their valne '!-A. I know lte hatl a honsc, barn, feueing, ditches, and C•>rrals, 
but clo not know enongh ahont it to fix the Yalue. I would be perfectly willing to 
take his stn.temellt for it. I haYe kuown him many yenrs aud always found him to 
be honorable in hi~ tnmsactionH. 

JAJ\JES K MOOBE. 

Personally ttppeared before me, James K. Moore, who, being duly sworn, deposes 
and says that he has read the foregoing testimony and that the statements therein 
contained are true. 

JAMES K. MooRE. 

Suhscribetl and sworn to before me this 31st day of October, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, W~70 . 

c. F. NESLER, 
unitecl States Indian lnspecto1·. 

Deposition of F. G. Bwrnett, taken at Shoshone .Agency, Wyo., Novernbe1· 4, 1898, 1·elative 
to imp1·ovenwnts made on the Shoshone Reservation, Wyo ., by Stefano Gini . 

Q. What is your name, residence, and occnpation ~-A. F . G. Burnett, adilitional 
farmer, Shoshone Agency, Wyo. 

Q. When did you first come on the reservation ~-A. I came here with Ageut Irwin 
in May, 1871, and have beer in the employ of the Government or lived in this vicinity 
since. 

Q. Are you acquainted with Stefano Gini and familiar with the improvements 
made by him since 1876 and up to the time of his removal in the spring of 1894 ~­
A. Yes, sir. 

Q. I wish you would give a list of the improvements made by him after 1876 and 
up to the time of his removaL-A. A log dwelling, a log outhouse, a log stable, 
chicken house, root cellar, and corral, amounting in value to ahon+, $800. 

Q. Would you consider that sum a fair adjustment of Mr. Gini's claim ~-A. I 
would. 

Q. Do any of these improvements exist to-day-A. They do 1not. 'fhey were on 
the school reserve and were removed by the superintendent. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

· Personally appeared before me, F. G. Burnett, who, being duly sworn, deposes and 
says that he has read the foregoing testimony, and that the statements therein con­
tained are true. 

F. G. BURNETT. 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day of November, 1898, at Shoshone 
Agency, Wyo. 

C. F. NESLER, 
Unitecl States Inclian Inspector . 

.Appmi8ement made by Inspector Nes ler of the imp1·ovements made on the Shoshone Rese1'-
vation, Wyo., subseqnent to 1876 and claimecl by Stefano Gini. 

1log dwelling, 16 by 30 ............. __ . __ ..... ___ ........... _ ...... __ ..... _ .. $200 
1log stable, 15 by 36 .......... _ .... __ . __ . _ . _. __ ..... ___ ....... _____ ...... __ .. 150 
1log root cellar, 10 by 16 ...... ___ . _ ...... __ ... __ .......... ___ .... _.... .. . . . . . 50 

. 1 pole corral . __ .. ____ .. ___ ....... ___ ... ____ ... ___ ... _ ... __ .. __ . __ ........ __ .. 25 

$425 
The above improvements were located on the land subsequently included in the 

Wind River boarding school reserve, and were removed or destroyed by the snper­
intendent some time ago. Measurements are as correct as could be obtained. 

C. F. NESLER, 
United States Inclian Inspecto1·. 
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UNITED STATlcS INDIAN SERVICE, 
Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Septembe1· 6, 1893. 

STEVE GENI, ESC(.' 
Shoshone Indian .Rel!er·vation, Wyo. 

Su-t: Yon are hereby ordered to remove yourself, together with all your personal 
effects, from this reservat.iou ou or before the l!::!t day of October, 1893. 

Yon are cautioued not to deface, destroy, or remove any permanent improvements, 
such as buildings, fences, etc. 

Very respectfully, yours, 
P. H. RAY, 

Captain, Eighth I11jant1·y, Acting United States Indian A gent. 
A true copy: 

C. F. NEsum, United States Indian Inspecto1·. 

DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR, OFFICE OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, 
Washington, D. C., March 24, 1890. 

JoHN FosnER, Esq., 
United Sta.tes indian Agent, Shoshone Agency, Wyo. 

SIR: I am in receipt of yonr eommunication, dated December 17, 1889, with refer­
ence to certain settlers on the \Vind l-~iver Reservation, in which yon state that Wil­
liam Evens and .James Rogers in conversation with you said that they h a(l made 
considerable improvements on their ranches since the appraisement made by Agent 
Irwin, and did not thiuk they ought to be askecl to base their claims on that 
appraisement; that they were willing to leave the matter to arbitration, and would 
bind themselves to stand by the decision of a board to be constituted by their 
choosing a man. the Government one, and these two a third, and ·that the claims of 
N~lson Yamall and William Jones should also be settled, they having made consid­
erable improvements in the way of building fences and constructing irr igating 
ditches. 

You also state that the principal of the Wind River Boarding School desires that 
the Evens ranch b e secured for a school farm, it being the most acce8sible piece of 
land. 

In reply I have to state that at the last session of Congress an appropriation of 
$9,371.50 was made to enable the Secretary of the Interior to pay the settlers who in 
good faith made settlement in the Wind River Valley previous to the time when 
said valley w~ts included in the Wind River Indian Reservation the value of their 
improvements as found by appraisement: "PTovided, That no payments shall be made 
to any one of said settlers until he shall :first have :finally removed from said 
reservation." 

It appears from the records of this office that on March 10, 1875, Hon. W. R. Steele, 
Delegate in Congres~?, wrote this office in behalf of said settlers, and in connection 
therewith on the 12th of the same month submitted a petition from them asking an 
appraisement of their improvements, with a view of obtaining from the Government 
payment for said improvements. In accorda.nce with this r equest, the improvements 
were appraised, the amount of the appraisement being $9,871.50. The claims thus 
appraised were favorably reported upon by this office May 2, 1876; again May 21, 
1880, and also February 7, 1884. 

The payment of these claims was urged on behalf of the settlers and not at the 
request of this office. 

It was denied by the office that they had any legal claim to pay for their improve­
ments, as they had settled upon unsurveyed lands to which they could acquire no 
title or vested rights as against the United States. It was admitted, however, that 
they had an equitable claim to payment for the value of the improvements made by 
them before the land was approprhtted to other purposes by the Government. 

For improvements made since that time they have no possible claim, legal or 
equitable. 

At any time after the establisment of the reservation they could legally have been 
removed from the reservation, and they are still liable to such action. 

Yon will notify the several parties that they are expected to remove from the res­
ervation within a reasonable time. Should they refuse or neglect to clo so, you will 
report the matter to this office for further instructions. 

Very respectfully, 
T. J. MORGAN, Commissione~·. 

A true copy: 
C. F. NESLER, United States Indian Inspector. 
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SHOSHONE AGEXCY7 WYO., JYiay 15, 1890. 
The CoMMISSIONER OF INDIAN ArrFAms, · 

·· Washington, D. C. 
SIR: Referring to office letter L. 36793, 1889, I have the honor to inform yon that 

I notified, a.s directed, the several parties name~, Evans, Rogers, Jones, and Yarnall, 
of the full text of the instructions "that they were expected to remove from the 
reservation within a reasonable time." They have willingly assented to comply with 
anything thought to be the b.est for all concerned. 

Very respectfully, 

A true copy: 
C. F. NESLER, Un'iled States Indian Inspectm·. 

JOHN FOSHEH1 
United Sttttes Indian Agent . . 

UNITED STATES INDIAN SERVICE, 
Shoshone A ,r;ency, Wyo., Augnst 5, 1893. 

'l'he CO:>.IMISSIONER OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, 
Washington, D. C. 

Sm: I have the honor to make the following report., and req nest that I may be 
instructed in the premises: 

There are three settlers on the reservation adjacent to the agency, namely, ¥r. 
William Jones, Mr. Nelson Yarnall (who holds the claim of William Boyd), and Mr. 
William Rogers (heir of the late James Rogers), whose presence is a constant source 
of friction and irritation to the Indians. They have herds of catt]e and horses that 
are constantly breaking into their fields, and complaints have frequently been made 
to the agent here. The matter discussed in many of their councils are reporte~ by 
them to different inspectors. In a communication from your office dated March 24, 
1890, the · agent. here was instructed to notify the several parties that they were 
expected to remove from the reservation within a reasonable time and that improve­
ments of any nature should not be made, and he (the agent), was instructed to report 
whether the parties had obeyed the instructions or not. 

lam informed that verbal notification was given to these partie8 'Qy the outgoing 
agent, Mr. John Fosher, autl that; instead of obeying the same, improvements of a 
substantial 1dnd have been made (in the instance of Mr. William Rogers a ~arge 
stone house), thus openly defying the Government throu~h their agent. The history 
of these claims has been so often related to your office tliat I will not report it DOW; 
but as they settled o:ri unsurveyed puLlic lands their ti.tle was legally void, and they 
shpuld have been satisfi.ed with the equitable adiustment, upon their own applica­
tion, made witli their entire approval and consent, in the appropriation made by act 
of Congress, and which money is uow ready, as r understand, for payment upon thefr 
vacating said lands. 

I would respectfully request authority to remove thc>m from the reservation after 
they gather their fall crop, say not later than the 15th of October, and to use the 
necessary force to effect their removal, notification being given them imuiediately 
after approval by your office to vacate by that tinie. 

Very respectfully, your obedient servant, 

A true copy: 

HENRY WYGANT, 
Captain, Twml.ty-jou1·th Injant1·y, Acting Un'ited States Indian Agent. 

C. F. NESLER, United States Indian Inspecto1·. 

D.EP ARTMENT OF THE INTERI0It1 0FFICF: OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, 
Washington, Augttst 24 , 1893. 

Capt. P. H. HAY, U.S. A., 
..doting Indian Agent, Shoshone Agency, Wyo. 

SIR: On August 5, 1893, your predecessor stated, in a let.ter to this office, that there 
were three settlers .on the Shoshone or Wind River Reservation, \Vyo., adjacent to 
the agency, namely, Mr. William Jones, Mr. Nelson Yarnall, and Mr. William Rogers, 
whose presence is a constant source of friction and irritation to the Indians, and 
requested authority to remove them from the reservation after they gather their .fall 
crops, say not later than the 15th of October next, and to use the necessary force to . 
effect their removal. 

In connection with this matter I have to state that on the 15t.h mstant all the facts 
in the case were laid before the Department, with the r ecommendation that author­
ity be granted to remove the parties above named from the Shoshone Reservation, 
provided they fail or refuse to do so within a reasonable time after written notice to 
that effect shall have been served upon them, respectively, by the agent of the Sho-

H. Doc. 228-3 
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shone Agency, for the reasori that their presence on that reservation is detrimental 
to the peace and welfare of the Indians, and that they are there without authority 
of law. 

The authority as recommended was granted by the Department August 17, 1893, a 
copy of which is inclosed herewith. 

You will serve written notice upon each of the parties named (William Jones, 
Nelson Yarnall, and William Rogers) to remove from the reservation within a rea­
sonable time, not later than the last of October next, taking with them their fami­
lies and personal effects, and in the event of their refusal or failure to do so, you 
will proceed, with the aid of your police, to remove them therefrom. 

You will report your action in the premises. 
Very respectfully, 

D. M. BROWNING, Commissione·r. 
A true copy: 

C. F. NESLER, United States Indian Inspector. 

SHOSHONE AGENCY, WYO., Septernbe1· 3, 1893. 
The COMMISSIONER OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, Washington, D. C. 

SIR: In the matter of the removal of William Jones, Nelson Yarnall, and William 
Rogers, I have the honor to report that I have served written notice upon ·the 
parties to remove from the reservation not later than October 31, 1893, and cautioned 
not to remove, deface, or destroy any permanent improvements, such as buildings, 
fences, etc. The same day I served the notice I was informed by my predecessor, 
Mr. John Fosher, that Mr. Yarnall had vacated his premises in April last, and that 
he, Yarnall, bad at that time made claim for the amount apvropriated by Congress 
for payment of the elaim of William Boyd, said payment to be made only on con­
clition that claimant vacated the premises; and that he, Fosher, considered the place 
vacated and that he had written a letter to the honorable Commissioner to that 
effect in March; and I find that a claim in favor of William Boyd fur $1,392.50 
was allowed by the honorable Commissioner on April 15. The house being vacant 
I have taken possession. I now find that Yarnall, after vacating, entered into · an 
agreement with William Jones to cut the crop of ha.y for the current year. 

The first crop of alfalfa has been cut and the second is now mature, which I have 
taken possession of and will cut it for the agency_, t ere being about 60 acres of it. 
It is of considerable value. I am ·satisfied Captain Wygant was not aware that 
Yarnall bad vacated the place when he applied to have him removed. Mr. Fosher 
states to me that he knew nothing of the agreement between Yarnall and Jones, but 
knew that Jones was cutting the hay. 

Very respectfully, your obedient servant, 

A true copy: 

P. H. RAY, 
Oapta.in, Eighth Injcmt1·y, Acting Indian Agent. 

C. F. NESLER, United States Indian Inspecto1·. 

UNITED STATES INDIAN SERVICE, 
Shoshone Agency, Wyo., Novembm· 1, 1893. 

The CO.Ml\USSIONER OF INDIAN AFFAIRS, 
Washington, D. C. 

SIR: In obedience to instructions from your office, contained in letter dated 
August 24, 1893, I have the honor to report tha.t I have this clay removed from the 
Shoshone Indian Reservation Messrs. William Jones and William Rogers, they hav­
ing failed to comply ·with notice from this office dated August 31, 1893 (copies 
inclosed). The claim of Nelson Yarnall having been vacated March 28, 1893, all 
claims are now vacated. 

Very respectfully, your obedie:qt servant, 
P. H. RAY, 

Captain, Eighth Infantr-y, Acting United States Indian Agent. , 

An official copy furnished Mr. William Jones. 
P. H. RAY, 

Captain, Eighth Infant?·y, Acting United States Indian .Agent. 
I 

An official copy furnished Mr. WHliam Rogers. 

A true copy: 

P. H. RAY, 
Captain, Eighth Injant1·y, .Acting United States Indian Agent. 

C. F. NESLER, United States Indian Inspecto1·. 
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